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Financial Highlights

IR

For the year ended 31 December/ BZ12A318LEE Change (%)
As at 31 December M12H31H 2016 2015 #E)(%)
Financial highlight (RMB million) MEREAREEER)
Revenue BER 1,103.5 1,178.0 (6.3%)
Gross profit EF 567.3 604.6 (6.2%)
Profit before taxation BRA AT FE 327.2 338.9 (3.5%)
Profit for the year attributable to equity PN/ O Y
shareholders of the Company FEFHE 268.8 267.3 0.6%
Total comprehensive income for the year 7K BlAE 2 IR BR FEAY
attributable to equity shareholders of FEEEWERTE
the Company 2545 264.8 (3.9%)
Earnings before interest, tax, BRFE - BiE - TER
depreciation and amortisation AT BT 341.3 350.3 (2.6%)
Total equity attributable to equity SIS R (L e AR R
shareholders 1,856.2 1,710.8 8.5%
Total assets aEE 2,457.0 2,182.9 12.6%
Financial ratios B EE =R
Net debt to shareholders’ fund (%) TREBERRE D LR (%) Net cash Net cash N/A
FEE FRE TEA
Interest coverage (times) F B ERR(EE) 77.0 339.2 (77.3%)
Financial information per share (RMB) BERUBEER(ARET)
Earnings il 0.16 0.16 0.0%
Dividends fz 8 0.057 0.065 (12.3%)
Equity attributable to equity holders IS E A AFE(E RS 1.1 1.03 8.0%
REVENUE & %28 TOTAL ASSETS #&E NET PROFIT #%| EQUITY #&
(RMB million) (ARBET)  (RMB million) (AR¥EEBE&EIT) (RMB million) (AR¥EEBESIT) (RMB million) (AR¥EBET)
1,400 2,500 2,457.0 400 2,500
1500 e 2,250 2,250 B
e 2,000 - 2,000 /050.
1,000 1,750 268.8 1,750
800 1,500 1,500
1,250 200 1,250
600 1,000 1,000
400 750 - 750
500 500
200 250 250
0 0 0 0
2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016
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Key Financial Ratios

EEZH =R

Financial ratio Bt = 2016 2015
Profitability ratios ERIgE HEL =R
Gross profit margin FE = 51.4% 51.3%
Net profit margin before interest and tax M F B TR T AT R R =R 30.0% 28.9%
Net profit margin SEFE R 24.4% 22.7%
Return on equity T B R E 14.3% 15.8%
Return on total assets M EE R 11.0% 13.1%
Liquidity ratios REBEEEEE
Current ratio NOEE RS 3.98 times & 4.51 times &
Quick ratio REpLL =R 3.61 times & 3.95 times &
Stock turnover days FERABAH 163.1 days H 136.3 days H
Debtors’ turnover days FEU AR TR Bl B 8% 99.7 days H 80.2 days B
Creditors’ turnover days FERTAR XA B 8K 122.7 days B 110.8 days H
Capacity adequacy ratios BEXFRELLE
Gearing ratio BELE 13.0% 5.9%
Debt to net worth ratio B FELE 24.0% 14.5%
Interest coverage (times) FEEME(EE) 77.0 339.2
Others Hith
Net debt to shareholders’ funds FEFERRES X Net cash Net cash
FERE FHE

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN EF|%
%
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2015 2016
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Chairman’s Statement

EERHESE

Mr. Shi Hongliu
Chairman & Executive Diretor

MEHEREE
EFRMUTES
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

EERMES

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hosa International Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the Company’s annual results report for the year ended 31

December 2016.

o .
R
ANEREESESERAT (ARA]
31 ALLFREHMAES -

BREME R A

In 2016, the domestic economic environment extended the trend of
the second half of 2015. The gross domestic product (“GDP") of the
year increased by 6.7%, representing a decrease as compared with the
increase of 6.9% last year. With the instability of the global economy,
there is higher level of uncertainties on the prospect, which affected
consumers’ confidence to a certain extent and in turn the consumer
market growth. Facing the prevailing situation, the Group focused on the
fitness segment and promoted channel restructure with Hosa Sports
Health Experience Stores by opening big stores and closing small stores
in order to improve consumer experience and per store sales. Meanwhile,
we proactively explored the establishment of professional channels,
developed a wider range of sports and health products and integrated
sports and health products and services to develop new business growth
driver. Although the sales of sports underwear continued to decrease,
the overall operating condition yet remained stable and healthy. As of 31
December 2016, the revenue for the year of the Group was RMB1,103.5
million, representing a decrease of 6.3% as compared with last year.
The net profit was RMB268.8 million, representing an increase of 0.6%
as compared with last year. The basic earnings per share was RMB0.16
which remained unchange as compared with last year.

Based on the Group's performance for the year of 2016, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.3 cents (equivalent
to approximately RMB2.1 cents) per share to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) as of 31 December 2016, and with the
interim dividend of HK4.2 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB3.6
cents), the total dividend payout ratio for the year was approximately
35%.

CBREAIAERDEZS([EFT DIREARAAE2016512H

2016 F B A4S EIRIZIE AR T 2016F T H 4
MBs  2FEANEELBE(IGDP) R
6.7% * RIth EFIERE.9%EH N o BERE
ETETE IS TRETSHEMGN  SHEEE
LRE—FREFE  FETHEMGER -
FHEERIFE  ARERERIRIE - LUES)
FEEREERR S BRI R - TR AR/ NS
RBER IR EEERERREEEE - [
B - BGAEEEREER  EREHRRE
o BAEBEYREERMRS  HETHE
GRS - ANBBARHEEE TR B
BREELBAKAENETE MEEMEE - &
£2016F12A31HIE - AEBHNEFEERE
BARE1103658HETL  LEFT46.3% -
FAEAARE2688EET  thEFE LT
0.6% - BREARFIARKO167T - BEF
B

ER2016FANEENEERE  EFCES
MAARRRE (TR )RS EZE2016F12 8
31 B IR S T2 3B (FHERN O AR
2.19) o IN_EFHEREFSRRA 2B (HERLD
AR¥365)  (h2FHEDHAEAERLAETNN
35%
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRWMES

The Group has been focusing on sports health market for a long
time using professional contests and activities as principal marketing
promotion strategy to create the advantage in differentiation in its brand
identity. In 2016, the Company continuously devoted more efforts in the
sponsorships of professional swimming and fitness competitions, such as
the National Swimming Championships, the National Summer Swimming
Championships and Olympic Qualifying Tournament, titled sponsorships
for “Hosa Cup” Adolescents Swimming Contest, various provincial and
city “Hosa Cup” Adolescents Swimming Championships, “Hosa Cup”
College Swimming Championships and other sports programs, as its
key focus in supporting adolescents’ sports development. As the titled
sponsor of the Fédération Internationale de Natation Association (“FINA")
Marathon Swimming World Cup, and Diving Series as well as the global
partner of FINA, the Group continued to sponsor Marathon Swimming
World Cup and the diving tournament of FINA World Cup. The Group
sponsored nearly ten provincial swimming teams and all swimming
contests of certain provinces. Moreover, the Group sponsored “Hosa
Cup” 2016 National Rhythmic Gymnastic Grand Prix, promoting national
fitness and creating professional image and strategic value of the brand
of Hosa in the field of professional fitness.

As a sports and health industry group with a brand mission of delivering
and propagandising a natural, healthy and joyful sports lifestyle, the
Group is committed to performing one of the important missions of
giving back to society to fulfill its corporate social responsibilities while
creating corporate operating results and offering favourable shareholders’
returns. In 2016, the Group continued to promote and develop national
fitness through wide and deep cooperation with many organisations in
the industry, organised and sponsored fitness promotion campaigns in
different cities across China, for instance, the National Fitness Carnival,
the Fitness Exchange Conference, the Yoga Conference and the Asia
Fitness Festival, and the programme of “Happy Fitness” with Beijing TV,
building “HOSHAPE" (¥R 47 #8HOSHAPE), the first TV program in the
world at real fitness centre as scene, aimed at promoting the culture of
fitness, popularising national fitness activities and advocating scientific
fitness, particularly, to fulfill its social responsibilities by raising national
citizens’ health awareness and improving their physical conditions.
For honours and recognitions this year, the Company was awarded
the Outstanding Enterprise Award (¢t /2% 1%), China Charity Festival
Awards (B QA2z560#81E), China Association for Quality Inspection
Awards (11 758 #5217 & #818), the First Place in China Swimsuit Market
(FREIKE T 515 H), and Charity Communications Award of Health Model
Selection (f# BB Az EE ). Meanwhile, the synchronized
swimming suit of Hosa was selected as the special swimming suit for
Chinese synchronized swimming team in 2016 Rio Olympic Games.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group has become a leading role in the industry by seizing the
opportunities offered by the booming sports and health industry and the
specialised niche markets for a long term, proactively striving for being
innovative and responsive to the changes in the market environments
and business forms. In recent years, the Group has been proactively
implementing the strategies of transformation and upgrade in light
of the influence brought along with the development of the Internet
and popularization of e-commerce. In 2016, the Group sought to
develop, transform and upgrade itself in four key aspects, namely brand
segmentation, product structure optimization, reform of the distribution
channels and strategic layout of sports and health ecosphere by adopting
the following five key measures:

1. to promote the establishment of channels in schools and
specialized stadiums via title sponsorship to provincial swimming
teams to explore the adolescent consumer market;

2. to establish all-round distribution channels for the convenience
and consumption experience of consumers, by focusing on the
establishment of professional stores and direct selling by fitness
coaches;

3. to deepen the strategy of improving the store quality, continue
to establish the existing retail outlets and focus on fostering the
deployment of Hosa Sports Health Experience Stores, with efforts
in enhancing consumers’ experience;

4. to proactively seek for cooperating opportunities on industrial
vertical platforms, based on the consuming characteristics of
e-commerce channels;

5. to develop various kinds of intelligent products and sports and
health APP in line with the implementation of the Company's
strategy of sports and health ecosphere, in turn successfully
promoting the corporate transformation in order to lay a foundation
for the better development of the Group in the future.

EERBEE

AEBEHUARRRIEESRREXRNEE
MOMIFEDERNZE - RETIZRENE
FREE L TRIRAIFTEE - KREXEERH
FoIFR  AEBRERUEBENERNE
PTSH) S R PTHRE R - R EE R
FHRRBES - 2016%F » AEBEAESH R
A EmSBTE  RBEESR  EIRE

FE P B S 0 0 P 815 T S (R S RO B IR AR
BTHE - BRI T AT RIEH |

1. BEHRERAENTEREE) - T
BREEXRGEREER  AHBEIF
HEMS

2. ESHEBEENMEERER  EHE
2REER  EHEEFEREHLER
HESFHERHRANER

3. RLIBTESRERIEE  FEEE
RABRKRER  EXHEEDRR
BRENME - EHNEHEERR

4. RESTEABRENHERH BER
NEFEETAHNAEHRS

5. BE#&EARBIEDRFE & AR E B e
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APP - FRINMHEAE T (DR - /AL
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRWMES

After the promulgation by the PRC State Council of several opinions
regarding the sports and health industry since 2013, significant
development opportunities have been opened up for the health service
and sports service sectors. General Administration of Sports of China
published the “13th Five-Year Plan for the Development of the Sports
Industry” in 2016, which clarified that the total scale of sports industry
between 2016 to 2020 exceeded RMBS trillion, and the value added
accounted for 1.0% of the GDP. In the same year, the State Council
issued The National Fitness Plan (2016-2020), proposing vigorous
efforts in developing mass sports programs, advocating a new trend
of comprehensive fitness and promoting the establishment of “Health
China”. The plan stated that, by 2020, the number of people who do
exercise once or more a week will reach 700 million, the number of
people who frequently do exercise will reach 435 million, and the total
scale of sports consumption will reach RMB1.5 trillion. National fitness
will promote industrial development, and form new economic growth
driver. Meanwhile, consumers’ pursuits for sports and health products
and services have been building up swiftly along with the surge in living
standards among the public.

In view of current situation, the Group and its controlling shareholder
will fully utilize the leading position in sports and health products and
services with the determination to implement the development strategy
for the sports and health industry. The sports and health ecosphere
will be continued to be established based on customers’ sports and
health lifestyle. Centered around sports and health products and big
data to develop and consolidate industry resources, the ecosphere links
consumers, scenarios and products with the service provider through a
mobile sports and health community to cater for the consumers’ sports
and health lifestyle and provide them with comprehensive services.

In 2017, the Group will focus on the promotion of the following tasks:

l]. to promote the integration of online and offline sale by establishing
“Hosa new retail”, and sufficiently expand the opportunity of
“Internet+";

2. to promote the titled sponsorship cooperation of various sports and
fitness events continuously, and enhance the professional image
and reputation for the brand;

3. to continue to develop new sports and health products, research
on, develop and upgrade the smart products and consolidate sports
and health products and services to explore new business growth
driver based on consumers’ needs;

4. to promote intelligent products and health APP and continue to
perfect product series;

2016 ANNUAL REPORT K%

W2013FFA - P EBRKEPLEAM T ZERER
EHEREEXFHENER  BERERBEN
EERGENBERETERNERERES -
2016F BIRBEE LRI (EEELLRE
[+=AIMRE) - AT E20164F —20204F
NEEEXQREBRBAREIER  EX
EINEERANEEAEPNELEZE10% ° [
F o BT T (2 ERES5T2(2016-2020
F)) BEBEANBEBRZEES TE2A
RSN HEEREPHER - WHED
T20209F - BEZ MR RIA FEFIREN
ANEUERI7E - EESMEF B A B
B4 3518 EBEHBLAHEEIARKIE
B 2RESGREELRE  ERITNLE
R A BEAREEKENES @ 4
BEYIBEERE S MIRIEHE KR RE N -

EERZT  AEBEMERERGEELE
BiEFER EDRFRBTENELES
BEEDHRFEFFRBE  HERSEEL
EERRFEEENABZEDRREERE  E
BREEMIAREBELSTL  AEMESER
BR - MESESREIEREREEE 15
= Em REBREUENEER  HEEENE
BiEFRAETT A RMHEE R -

20174 » AEBEIHHEATHEREIE

1 ADESHEE DR LS THER
& AR EBE IR

2. HEEEESBEDRFEIDNTEHED
B R RENEEENXEE

3. REEREFR  RECHEDREE
an v BTEE - ARSREER - BREDR
FRERMRTY - RIS EBIERE

4. MEDHEERLBEAPP  LHEETE
EmAES



Chairman’s Statement

B to actively explore the industry upstream and downstream
cooperation, including food and drinks supply, internet/app service,
gymnastic stadium, fitness service, etc, to integrate the industry
resources by flexible cooperative investment, and develop sports
and health industry.

Over the past two years, the Group was under transformation and
upgrade, which in turn had a certain impact on the results indicators.
However, the Group believes that with its efforts in the promotion of the
sports and health industry and the implementation of above measures,
a solid strategic foundation will be laid for the future development of the
Group, which will sharpen its competitiveness in the sports and health
industry and establish a long-term competitive edge, in turn expanding
the room for future development in effective manner and creating greater
value and returns to the customers and shareholders.

The contributions and support from the senior management, staff,
partners, consumers and shareholders of the Group are the cornerstone
and incentive of the continuous development of the Group. | would like to
convey my gratitude to everyone who supports and trusts the Group.

Shi Hongliu
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017

EERMES
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MARKET OVERVIEW

2016 is the year full of challenges and opportunities. The growth of
the Chinese economy decelerated and GDP of the year increased
by 6.7%, representing a decrease as compared with the increase
of 6.9% last year. There are worries over the macroeconomic
market due to the uncertain prospects of global economy, impacted
domestic consumer sentiment, and the pressure on traditional sales
channels continuously imposed by e-commerce. However, the PRC
government has gradually promoted and implemented the policies
of the sports and health industry, which provides opportunities
under the adverse economic situation. Over the past few years,
China has promulgated a number of policies to support the sports
and health industry. In 2016, the General Administration of Sports
of China published the “13th Five-Year Plan for the Development
of the Sports Industry”, and the State Council also issued The
National Fitness Plan (2016-2020), proposing vigorous efforts
in developing mass sports programs, advocating a new trend of
comprehensive fitness and promoting the establishment of Healthy
China. The plan stated that, by 2020, the number of people who
frequently do exercises will reach 435 million, and the total scale of
sports consumption will reach RMB1.5 trillion. National fitness will
promote industrial development, and form new economic growth
driver.

Although the domestic GDP per capita has exceeded US$8,000
in 2015, the sports and health industry did not significantly grow
in line with international precedents during such period due to
the characteristics of the economic structure. It is expected that,
following the step-by-step promotion and implementation of the
relevant policies, the sports and health industry will experience a
high-growth period. Meanwhile, in the growing consumer market of
sports and health, more sophisticated consumers are pursuing not
only brand names and professional functionality but also fashion,
cost-performance ratio and quality.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT K%

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR D

mEHE

2016%F R MkBE RBBEH —F -
PRCEIERRE  2FGDPEER
6.7% ' ELLEFIEECI%E % -
EHEEAN R TR BRAEBERT
FE . NLESEBRBEESIER
NEE  ZECEMSEERE - BF
BT R RS B ML A £ MR Z
WHEERE  EEOERRPRETHS -
BERFERREM T ZEIFEINER
BEENIE  E2016FAREE AR
BT(REEXRET=ZRIRE) A
RSN T (RS E(2016-
2020 )DVIRHEBRNWBEERES -
FERMEGHNEE  HEERPHE
2% 0 WRAREE) T 20206 © (KELMNES
SRR AN B ER 43508 - EEHER
HIBEIARE18E 2RS4
REEZEERE  FRATEHEERE -

R BI A A GDPR2016F E 48 T
8,000k 7t * Bl NEEEBNEE -
R ESRREFERILIERER
e AIEEIER - TAHREE AMBOREA
THERE  EDREERNSERS
BN oRER - R - ERERRAESR
FORBMISH  HEENERBAMRE
ft TMEERRERBEDEN - Al
Bt B R REBAETER -




Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

The positive development trend of the sports and health industry
creates favourable external conditions for the Group, which
possesses competitive resources of the related industry, to
implement the strategy of sports health industry and the successful
transformation and upgrade. In 2016, the Group continued to
actively promote the transformation and upgrade in respect of
branding, sales channels and retail outlets. Net profit remained
flat as compared with last year. The operating condition was still
healthy in general. The strategy of sports health industry has been
implemented, which provide the Group with a greater room for
development.

The Group’s revenue for 2016 amounted to RMB1,103.5 million
(2015: RMB1,178.0 million), representing a decrease of 6.3% as
compared with the same period of last year. The profit for the
year attributable to the shareholders of the Group amounted to
RMB268.8 million (2015: RMB267.3 million), representing an
increase of 0.6% as compared with the same period of last year.

(a) Products

Currently, the Group's sports and health products and
equipment are indoor sportswear, including the three product
lines of fitness wear, swimwear and sports underwear. In
2016, with the emphasis on sports and fitness, the Group
developed new products which met the professional needs
of sports so as to optimise its product structure. As of 31
December 2016, the Group's three product lines, namely
fitness wear, swimwear and sports underwear, achieved an
operating income of RMB441.5 million, RMB563.1 million
and RMB98.9 million (2015: RMB437.1 million, RMB547.8
million and RMB193.1 million respectively), representing an
increase of 1.0%, 2.8% and a decrease of 48.8% respectively
as compared to the same period last year.

EBIEEFWR DN

EBRE

BENEREXERRIERNBY -
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BB RAE FEREBAREE - R
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M TF£48.8% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR D

(b)

(c)

Branding

In order to meet the multi-faceted demand from sports and
health communities, the Group currently possesses two
brands of products, namely Hosa and Water Cube. In 2016,
the Group continued putting more effort on the promotion of
Hosa as a brand in professional competitions and activities. As
a title sponsor of the Fédération Internationale De Natation
("FINA") Marathon Swimming World Cup and Diving Series
and being the global partner of FINA, the Group sponsored,
including but not limited to, the Marathon Swimming World
Cup and the diving tournament of FINA World Cup. The
Group also continued the promotion of and develop the
independent sale channels for Water Cube brand apparel, and
by leveraging its brand influence, high professional standard
and price-performance ratio, the Group continued to expand
sales in the mass swimwear market. As of 31 December
2016, the Hosa brand revenue amounted to RMB963.2
million (2015: RMB1,026.0 million), representing a decrease
of 6.1% as compared with the same period in 2015, while the
Water Cube brand apparel’s revenue amounted to RMB140.3
million (2015: RMB152.0 million), representing a decrease of
7.7% as compared with the same period in 2015.

Channels and Sales Outlets

In 2016, the Group established all-round distribution channels
for the convenience and improvement of consumption
experiences of consumers by focusing on the construction
of diversified outlets model such as professional network,
direct selling and marketing by coaches. At the same time,
for the development of physical sales outlets, by launching
Sports Health Experience Store, the Group emphasized
the improvement of the consumption experience so as to
promote sales outlets. These enabled the Group to maintain a
healthy level in overall operation. In addition, the Group made
proactive efforts in seeking opportunities to develop a vertical
e-commerce platform for fitness.

The Group also took advantage of the features of the Group's
products including specialization, flexibility of composition
and compatibility to encourage the offering of sales packages
with complementary products and brands by means of
wholesale and distribution. The above measures enabled
the Group to maintain a healthy level in overall operation
and improve the quality of sales network under the adverse
market environment.
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(d)

Management Discussion and Analysis
B W R D

Marketing and Consumer Relations

Focusing on promoting the life style as being natural,
joyful and healthy through the participation in sports, the
Group continued to carry out accurate and effective brand
promotion and marketing campaigns which focused on
its target customers, and brought about delightful and
pleasant experience in sports and health to its consumers.
In order to promote fitness culture, the Group continued
to vigorously promote and develop sports and national
fitness in 2016 through wide and deep cooperation
with many other organisations in the fitness industry. It
organised and sponsored more than a hundred of fitness
promotion campaigns in different cities across the country,
for instance, the National Fitness Carnival, the Fitness
Exchange Conference, the Yoga Conference and the Asia
Fitness Festival, aimed at spreading the culture of fitness,
popularising national fitness activities and advocating
scientific fitness, particularly, to fulfill its social responsibilities
by raising national citizens' health awareness and improving
their physical conditions.

(d)
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In 2016, the Company kept devoting more effort on the
sponsorship of professional swimming and gym competitions,
such as the National Swimming Championships, the National
Marathon Swimming Championships and the National Beach
Volleyball Grand Slam. In addition, as a title sponsor of the
FINA Marathon Swimming World Cup and Diving Series
and being the global partner of FINA, the Group sponsored,
including but not limited to, the Marathon Swimming
World Cup and the diving tournament of FINA World Cup.
Meanwhile, the Group also titled sponsorships for “Hosa
Cup” Adolescents Swimming Contest, various provincial and
city “Hosa Cup” Adolescents Swimming Championships,
"Hosa Cup” College Swimming Championships and other
sports programs. The Group also sponsored nearly ten
provincial swimming teams and all swimming contests of
certain provinces. In addition, the Group titled sponsorships
for "Hosa Cup” 2016 National Rhythmic Gymnastic Grand
Prix, promoting national fitness and creating professional
image and strategic value of the brand of Hosa in the field of
professional fitness.

The above promotional events received relatively satisfactory
response in the market, and the brand influence and
professional status of Hosa were also effectively promoted.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE W N

Product Research and Development

Equipped with nearly 20 years of experience in indoor
sportswear research and development, rich professional
knowledge and technological build-up, the Group has
established a seasoned research and development team
for indoor sports apparel that is familiar with the demand
of indoor sportswear in China’'s consumer market. The
Group has created a globalized and professional research
and development system formed by domestic and foreign
professional cooperating institutions including Hosa
International Beijing Design Centre, Hosa International
Fujian Technology Centre, French Design Studio, function
and prototype expert team from Japan as well as The Asian
Fitness Academy, which enabled the Group to continuously
enhance its competitive strengths in terms of the
professional design, fashion design, functional development
and technology of indoor sportswear and thus maintained the
market competitive edge of the Group's products. In 2014,
Hosa obtained the certification for competition swimwear
of FINA, in which Hosa is the only enterprise obtained such
certification in the PRC up to now.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR D

(f)

Financial Review
Revenue
By operating segments

Revenue of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2016 was RMB1,103.5 million (2015: RMB1,178.0
million), representing a decrease of 6.3% as compared to the
revenue for the financial year ended 31 December 2015. The
following table sets forth the sources of revenue by operating
segments in the Group’s operations:

(f)

AEBEHZE2016512 A318 L8
BFEERNEEBEAARE1,1035
BEL(2016%F : AR®1,178.0
BEL) BWEZ22015F12A8
JTHLEYBRFEERNEEETE
6.3% ° NREIIAEBIZEBK
EHEEI DR ATR

=/)n

Year ended 31 December

HBZE12A31BLEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 % RMB’'000 %
AR¥FT B ARMTT B
Domestic sales BANHE
Swimwear — Hosa INGEE)— & 341,566 31.0 335,472 285
Swimwear IKEE)

— Water Cube — K H 140,295 12.6 151,994 12.9
Fitness wear — Hosa & H i — & 441,167 40.0 436,471 37.0
Sports underwear — Hosa BE)RK —ESD 98,900 9.0 193,146 16.4

Subtotal N 1,021,928 92.6 1,117,083 94.8
Overseas sales BINHE
Swimwear — Hosa IKES) — & 81,253 7.4 60,313 5.1
Fitness wear — Hosa &S win— & 359 0.0 605 0.1
Subtotal 2 81,612 7.4 60,918 5.2
Total 1EEt 1,103,540 100.0 1,178,001 100.0

Domestic sales decreased from RMB1,117.1 million for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015 to RMB1,021.9
million for the financial year ended 31 December 2016,
representing a decrease of 8.5%. Overseas sales increased
from RMB60.9 million for the financial year ended 31
December 2015 to RMB81.6 million for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016, representing an increase of
34.0%. Given that the market potential remains relatively
large in China, the Group will continue to focus on its sales
efforts in the PRC market in the coming years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group primarily consisted of production
costs and procurement costs of finished products from
external sources. Production costs include raw material
costs, labour costs as well as manufacturing overhead
incurred in the production of swimwear, fitness wear and
sports underwear. The following table sets forth a breakdown

BEEN W R

HEHLE

AEENHERAEIZBRBEE
P AR Ko A SN BB ER B B AR O A
EERABRBEEKED BH
0 K8 By M TR EE A B IR AT K
A BIRARGGEER - X
AR BE m A0 $EE R BRAR -

of the cost of sales for the Group's products:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AEB¥TFT BRtt AREFT B

Raw materials R 405,712 75.7 436,034 76.0
Labour ST 50,297 9.4 54,846 9.6
Manufacturing overhead B A 17,213 3.2 18,972 3.3

Procurement costs of X m BR B A R
finished products 62,991 11.7 63,561 1.1
536,213 100.0 573,413 100.0

Raw material costs primarily refer to the costs of procuring
raw materials used in the production of our products, such as
fabrics, threads and ancillary clothing materials. For the year
ended 31 December 2016, the average purchase price for the
Group's key raw materials was RMB53.4 (2015: RMB57.4)
per kilogram, which was lower than that for the year ended
31 December 2015.

Certain production and processing procedures of the Group's
products, primarily fabric manufacturing, fabric printing and
dyeing as well as fabric cutting, sewing and stitching, are
outsourced to external contract manufacturers. The Group
provides fabric materials to contract manufacturers for
processing and pay outsourced processing and service fees.
Such outsourced processing and service fees are categorized
under the Group's raw material costs. Labour costs consisted
of salaries, benefits and other forms of compensation paid to
the Group's production staff. Manufacturing overhead mainly
includes depreciation of production facilities, costs associated
with operating our facilities including electricity, water,
maintenance costs, etc.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EBIEEFWR DN

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the cost of

sales by operating segments:

TREINRELED B DR HE
FRANBRAR -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLFE
2016 2015

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥FT BA AREFT A7k
Swimwear — Hosa KES —ED 198,866 37.0 179,311 31.3
Swimwear — Water Cube IKEE) —IKL 83,524 15.6 88,493 15.4
Fitness wear — Hosa 5w — s 193,994 36.2 187,372 32.7
Sports underwear — Hosa BEIAK —ED 59,829 11.2 118,237 20.6
536,213 100.0 573,413 100.0

Gross profit EF

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 was RMB567.3 million (2015: RMB604.6 million),
representing a decrease of 6.2% as compared to that of the
year ended 31 December 2015. Gross profit margin of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 was 51.4%

(2015: 51.3%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWR DM

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s
gross profit from operations and gross profit margin by
geographical regions and operating segments:

TRETEM R R L E D EE D
B RSB L PRISERN RERE
R4 :

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2016 2015
Gross Gross
Gross Profit Gross Profit
Profit Margin Profit Margin
EF EF=E EAH FEH =
RMB’000 %  RMB’000 %
AREFIT B ARMTT BTt
Domestic sales BIANHE
Swimwear — Hosa INGEE)— & 192,186 56.3 188,290 56.1
Swimwear — Water Cube NGEE)— KL T 56,771 40.5 63,501 41.8
Fitness wear — Hosa & Fwin— 540 247,390 56.1 249,435 57.2
Sports underwear — Hosa BENK —ED 39,071 39.5 74,909 38.8
Subtotal NEF 535,418 52.4 576,135 51.6
Overseas sales INHE
Swimwear — Hosa KiEE) — &S 31,767 39.1 28,184 46.7
Fitness wear — Hosa & Fmin— 540 142 39.6 269 44 4
Subtotal Nt 31,909 39.1 28,453 46.7
Total @5t 567,327 51.4 604,588 51.3
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Other revenue

Other revenue of the Group primarily consisted of
government grants and interest income from interest-bearing
bank deposits. The government grants were provided by
provincial or prefectural government authorities in the form
of unconditional subsidies as recognition for the Group’s
contribution to the local economy through the Group's
business operation and achievements as one of the core
enterprises in the local cluster of enterprises. Other revenue
decreased from RMB61.8 million in 2015 to RMB57.9 million
in 2016, representing a decrease of 6.4%. Such decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in the aggregate amount of
government grants, which amounted to RMB12.6 million in
2016 (2015: RMB24.4 million).

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consisted primarily of
advertising and promotion expenses, remuneration and
employee benefits for our sales and marketing personnel,
rental expenses, packaging and transportation expenses,
depreciation and amortisation expenses of our properties used
for sales and marketing activities and other miscellaneous
expenses. Advertising and promotion expenses primarily
include fees paid for event sponsorship and television,
magazine and billboard advertising. Selling and distribution
expenses decreased from RMB206.8 million in 2015 to
RMB185.7 million in 2016, representing a decrease of 10.2%.
Selling and distribution expenses represented approximately
16.8% of the revenue in 2016 (2015: 17.6%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses consisted
primarily of remuneration and employee benefits for the
Group’'s administrative staff, travel and transportation
expenses, general office expenses and other miscellaneous
expenses. Administrative and other operating expenses were
RMB109.2 million in 2016 (2015: RMB119.2 million). The
administrative and other operating expenses to total revenue
was 9.9% in 2016, which was lower than 10.1% of the same
period of last year.

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs primarily consisted of interest
charged to the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings.
Total finance costs increased from RMB1.0 million in 2015 to
RMB4.3 million in 2016, representing an increase of 329.8%.
As at 31 December 2016, the bank borrowings of the Group
amounted to RMB320.6 million (2015: RMB129.7 million).

Profit from operations and dividend

The profit from operations for the year ended 31 December
2016 decreased by 2.5% to RMB331.5 million as compared
with RMB339.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2015. Interim dividend of HK4.2 cents (equivalent to
approximately RMB3.6 cents) per share for the first half of
the year of 2016 was declared and paid to the Shareholders.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has
proposed a final dividend of HK2.3 cents (equivalent to
approximately RMB2.1 cents) per share, and with the interim
dividend of HK4.2 cents, the total dividend payout ratio
for the year was approximately 35%. The above proposed
dividends are subject to the approval of the Shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Key financial ratios

The following table sets forth certain of the Group’s major
financial ratios as at 31 December of the year indicated:

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR D

FTEBBILE

TRV AEERFIRFEERE
12A3TAMETEBMHL X

2016 2015
Current ratio MENLE =& 3.98 time & 4.51 time 1&
Quick ratio RENL K 3.61 time & 3.95 time &
Inventory turnover days FEREHH 163.1 days H 136.3 days A
Debtors' turnover days FENHR R4S B 2K 99.7 days H 80.2 days H
Creditors’ turnover days FEFIR A A& 122.7 days A 110.8 days H
Gearing ratio A& = 13.0% 5.9%
Working capital and working capital management EELTTREESLET

The inventory turnover days of the Group were 163.1 days
for the year ended 31 December 2016 as compared to 136.3
days for the year ended 31 December 2015. The inventory
turnover days increased by 26.8 days. The Group's debtors’
turnover days increased to 99.7 days for the year ended
31 December 2016 as compared to 80.2 days for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The Group generally allows credit
period ranging from 90 days to 180 days to customers.
The Group's creditors’ turnover days (including both trade
and bills payables) were 122.7 days for the year ended 31
December 2016 as compared to 110.8 days for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The overall working capital cycle
has increased from 105.7 days to 140.1 days. The overall
operation remained at a normal level.

The Group's primary objective of working capital
management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for the Shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
Shareholders’ returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current assets
of RMB1,760.8 million (2015: RMB1,619.1 million) of
which cash and bank deposits were RMB1,709.0 million
(2015: RMB1,477.4 million). Total bank borrowings as at 31
December 2016 were RMB320.6 million (2015: RMB129.7
million), while the bills payable were RMB124.1 million (2015:
RMB118.9 million). Bank borrowings and bills payable were
mainly used for the Group’s working capital management,
financing the purchases and financing the dividend paid to the
shareholders of the Group. The Group's gearing ratio as at 31
December 2016 (total bank borrowings divided by total assets)
was 13.0% (2015: 5.9%). The Group's transactions and the
monetary assets are principally denominated in Renminbi.
The Group did not experience any material difficulties in
operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuations in exchange
rates during the year. The Group adopts centralised financing
and treasury policies in order to ensure the Group's funding
is utilised efficiently. Conservative approach is adopted in
monitoring foreign exchange exposure and interest rate risk.
The Group's liquidity position remains strong and the Group
possesses sufficient cash and available banking facilities to
meet its commitments and working capital requirements.
This strong cash position enables the Group to explore
investment and business development opportunities when
expanding its market share in China.
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Use of Proceeds - Initial Public Offering

The shares of the Company were listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange on 16 December 2011 with net proceeds
from the global offering of approximately RMB488.6 million
(after deducting underwriting commissions and related
expenses). The amounts utilised as at 31 December 2016 are
as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR D

FriSIBf#% — IR R FRE

AATIRMR2011E12 416 B &
BT ERE S - RRNRERBE
SRR FHEA A AR 4886
BET(NREeHEAe RABEER
%) o M20165F12 831 A& A
SR

As at 31 December 2016
M20165E12A31H

Amount
of net Amount Remaining
Purposes of net proceeds Percentage proceeds utilised balance
8 RE 28A
FSREFHEAR Bk R ©8 EREE
(RMB (RMB (RMB
million) million) million)
(AR# (ARH (AR
BET) BET) BET)
i Expansion of distribution network
TR 5 AR 35% 171.0 171.0 -
2. Enhancement of brand image through
marketing and promotion
FERTISHEREERARBIER 25% 122.1 122.1 -
3. Expansion of production capacity
IEFTERE 15% 73.3 7.0 66.3
4, Investment in research, design and
development activities
T - REH R AR HIRE 10% 48.9 48.9 -
5. Development and upgrading of supply chain and
information management systems
BREFARHEEREREERS 5% 24.4 - 24.4
6. Funding for working capital and
other general corporate purposes
REEES A —RATRARREHRES 10% 48.9 48.9 -
100% 488.6 397.9 90.7

The Company does not intend to apply the remaining net
proceeds for the purposes other than those disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 6 December 2011 (the
“Prospectus”).

AAREEIZEAAT BEAE2011
F12A6HMBREZ([HBERE
RDAEEUIINGENFERT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Use of Proceeds — Share Placements

On 17 September 2013, Ho Born Investment Holdings
Limited (“Ho Born"”), the Company and Goldman Sachs
(Asia) L.L.C., as the placing agent, entered into a placing and
subscription agreement pursuant to which the placing agent
agreed to procure purchasers to subscribe for 54,500,000
existing shares owned by Ho Born to not fewer than six
independent placees at the placing price of HK$2.85 per
share, and Ho Born conditionally agreed to subscribe, and
the Company agreed to allot and issue to Ho Born for such
number of subscription shares which is equivalent to the
number of shares actually placed under the placing at the
subscription price of HK$2.85 per share. Details of these
transactions are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 17 September 2013.

Approximately RMB116.9 million (after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses) was
raised from the subscription. The amounts utilised as of 31
December 2016 are as follows:

EEE W

IS&aD

FriZsBEE - RO E

R2013F9A17H » EHBIEE
BABERAR(ER]) « AREI R
SR (EMNEREETLAR(EAR
ERE)TL—MMEELRRED
FBl BRERBRRERER
BAREBR D288 T2iRE
B 5288 % FHE A 2 54,500,000
Hxﬁﬁﬂxfﬁ&@ﬂ%%?@\ﬁé/‘—\%
B ARA - MIEFHEFIEER
BERE LR BB R ER SR
BREBETESHRER LIRSRE
172.858 L 2 RIBERE 2 &M
HEZZBERBRD - 25X
SZHBEIRAQRTBHA
20139 817H Z A ffs »

@LuﬁﬁﬁmAEMHwﬁ

BrL(EHBeEme REERX
%) - 2016512 A31 B8 A
ZEREIT

As at 31 December 2016

7"20165F12H31H
Amount
of net Amount Remaining
Purposes of net proceeds Percentage proceeds utilised balance
P8 FIA 28HA
FREFIEEEAR A7t R £ ERER
(RMB (RMB (RMB
million) million) million)
(AR¥ (AR (ARH
BET) BE) &)
1. Enhancement of brand image through
marketing and promotion
FERTISHELS BRARETER 30% 35.0 35.0 -
2. Expansion of production capacity
FERER 15% 17.5 - 17.5
3. Investment in research, design and
development activities
W - Rt RAEBNRE 40% 46.9 46.9 -
4. Funding for working capital and
other general corporate purposes
REEESREMB—RATRGREHRES 15% 17.5 17.5 -
100% 116.9 99.4 17.5
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EBIEEFWR DN

(9)

The Company does not intend to apply the remaining net
proceeds for the purposes other than those disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 17 September 2013.

Apart from the capital raising activity mentioned above, the
Company has not conducted any equity fund raising activities
in the past 12 months from the date of this announcement.

Capital expenditure and capital commitments

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the capital
expenditure amounted to RMB14.5 million. As at 31
December 2016, the capital commitments amounted to
RMB14.6 million.

Foreign exchange risk management

Most of the sales and purchases of the Group are settled
in Renminbi, which is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. The fluctuations in Renminbi during the year did
not have any significant effect on the Group's results. The
Group is not exposed to any significant foreign exchange
risk. In addition, the Group will conduct periodic review of its
exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a workforce of
about 1,300 people. Salaries of employees are maintained
at competitive level and are reviewed annually, with close
reference to the relevant labour market and economic
situation. The Group has adopted share option schemes
whereby employees of the Group are granted options to
acquire shares in the Company. Good relationship has been
maintained between the Group and its employees. The Group
also provides internal training to staff and pays out bonuses
based on staff performance and profits of the Group.

For details on the Group's employee policies, please refer to
Environmental and Social Responsibility Report set out on
pages 62 to 72 of this annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Relationships with distributors and suppliers

The Group mainly sells its products to distributors, who
placed the Group's products to retail outlets for final sales.

The Group would make on-site visits to distributors to
ensure that they comply with the terms of the distribution
agreement. It closely monitors the inventory and performance
of distributors by requiring them to submit sales reports. The
Group also provides distributors with various training and
support, provides guidance to distributors on optimizing their
product mix and offers them various tools and training in
inventory management. In addition, the Group offers frequent
training regarding its products, brand image, sales and
marketing strategies and company policies, and it supports
distributors during their marketing efforts. The Group believes
that such support motivates distributors and improves the
operational efficiency of the Group's sales and distribution
network.

Suppliers of the Group include raw material suppliers and
contract manufacturers. The Group has developed solid and
steady relationships with many of its key suppliers. Given
solid and steady relationships with the suppliers, the Group
believes that its suppliers generally provide supplies to the
Group with a priority and the Group has not experienced any
material shortage or delays in receiving supplies or services
from the suppliers during the track record period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE W R

3. Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group. Major risks and uncertainties are summarised below.

a. Brand/Reputation Risk

The Company has established and maintained its Hosa
brand as an indoor sportswear brand that aims to provide
complete satisfaction in the functionality, comfort and style
of its products, primarily targeting customers with health
consciousness and spending power.

If the Group is unsuccessful in promoting its Hosa brand or
fails to maintain its brand position and market perception,
consumer acceptance of its Hosa brand may erode, and the
Group's business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

Any negative publicity or disputes relating to the Group's
Hosa brand, products, sponsorship activities or management,
the loss of any award or accreditation associated with the
Group’s Hosa brand or products or the use of the “Hosa”
trademark or brand name by other businesses could
materially and adversely affect the Group's business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Market Trend

The Group's success depends on the market perception
and consumer acceptance of Hosa brand and the Group's
products, which in large part, rely on the Group's ability to
anticipate and respond to different consumer tastes in a
timely manner.

If the Group is unable to utilise new technologies and
processes, anticipate and respond to market and fashion
trends and consumer preferences in a timely manner,
demand for Hosa products may decrease. The Group's
business would also suffer if product creations or
modifications do not respond to the needs of customers, are
not appropriately timed with market opportunities or are not
effectively brought to market. Any failure by the Group to
offer products that respond to changing market and fashion
trends and consumer preferences, or any shift in market or
fashion trends and consumer preferences away from Hosa
brand and the Group's products, could adversely affect
consumer interest in the Group's products.
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Competition

Currently, the Group's swimwear, fitness wear and sports
underwear products face different levels of competition in
their respective market sectors. As the indoor sportswear
market is ever-evolving and competitors with similar
brand positioning may emerge and intensify the current
competition, there can be no assurance that the Group will
be able to compete effectively against competitors who may
have greater financial resources, greater scales of production,
superior technology, better brand recognition and a wider,
more diverse and established distribution network. To
compete effectively and maintain the Group's market share,
the Group may be forced to, among other actions, reduce
prices, provide more sales incentives to distributors, and
increase capital expenditures, which may in turn negatively
affect the Group's profit margins, business and financial
conditions and results of operations.

Operation of Distributors

As the Group's term of agreements with distributors is
generally 2 years, it is possible that their agreements with
the Group will not be renewed on favourable terms or at
all. If any of the Group's distributors terminates or does not
renew its distribution agreement with the Group, the Group
may not be able to replace such distributor with a new and
effective distributor with similar business scale in a timely
manner, on terms acceptable to the Group, or at all. If any
of the distributors ceases its business relationship with the
Group, the Group’s business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects could be materially and adversely
affected.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group mainly sold products to distributors, who
subsequently distributed our products to sub-distributors or
sold our products to end-consumers. The Group relies on
its distributors to oversee and ensure sub-distributors. The
sub-distributors’ failure to comply with the Group’s policies,
such as aggressive discounting of the retail price of the
Group's products, could result in the erosion of goodwill, a
decrease in the market value of the Group’s Hosa brand and
an unfavourable public perception about the quality of the
Group's products, which in turn could result in a material
adverse effect on the Group's business, financial condition,
results of operation and prospects.

The Group has no control over distributors or sub-distributors’
practice of obtaining retail spaces within department stores.
If the Group's distributors fail to secure retail spaces within
the department stores on commercially reasonable terms,
the Group's distributors may not be able to find alternative
locations in areas that offer similar business environments,
and the Group's competitors may move into such retail
spaces previously occupied by the Group's distributors. As a
result, the Group's sales performance may be materially and
adversely affected.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group's production process is carried out with low emissions
and low energy consumption, and it will not produce great amount
of pollutants. The Group has been endeavoring to ensure that the
production process is in compliance with the relevant environmental
rules and regulations. In the past, to the best of our knowledge the
Group has not been in breach of any relevant environmental rules
and regulations and has not been imposed any relevant penalty.
It is expected that the future operational activities of the Group
would not be significantly affected by the environmental policies.
For details on the Group's environmental policy, please refer to
Environmental and Social Responsibility Report set out on pages 62
to 72 of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in mainland China while the Company is listed on the
Stock Exchange. The Group's operations accordingly shall comply
with relevant laws and regulations in mainland China and Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the
date of this report, to the best of our knowledge, the Group has
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in mainland
China and Hong Kong, and there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Looking Ahead

Since 2013, the State Council and General Administration of
Sports of China have published various opinions relating to sports
and health industry which have provided material development
opportunities for the development of health services industry
and sports services industry. Looking forward, there will still be
tremendous room for the growth of the PRC sports and health
industry which enters a flourishing stage, and the growth of
demand will remain strong. Meanwhile, the construction of
stadiums, which was driven by the urbanisation in the PRC, the
growing number of consumers pursuing healthy lifestyle, the
trend of fitness, the promotion of national fitness and support to
health industry from the PRC government and the rising demand of
consumers for products and services in terms of personalised need
and professionalism have provided the Group with an important
opportunity for future development. The Group will maintain
its leading position in the existing sportswear business while
promoting the implementation and enforcement of strategies with
respect to sports and health industry in all aspects.

In view of current situation, the Group and its controlling
shareholder will fully utilize the leading position in sports and health
products and services with the determination to implement the
development strategy for the sports and health industry. The sports
and health ecosphere will be continued to be established based on
customers’ sports and health lifestyle. Centered around sports and
health products and big data to develop and consolidate industry
resources, the ecosphere links consumers, scenarios and products
with the service provider through a mobile sports and health
community to cater for the consumers’ sports and health lifestyle
and provide them with comprehensive services.

In 2017, the Group will focus on the promotion of the following
tasks:

1. to promote the integration of online and offline sale by
establishing “Hosa new retail”, and sufficiently expand the
opportunity of “Internet+";

2. to promote the titled sponsorship cooperation of various
sports and fitness events continuously, and enhance the
professional image and reputation for the brand;
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8, to continue to develop new sports and health products,
research on, develop and upgrade the smart products and
consolidate sports and health products and services to
explore new business growth driver based on consumers’
needs;

4. to promote intelligent products and health APP and continue
to perfect product series;

5. to actively explore the industry upstream and downstream
cooperation, including food and drinks supply, internet/app
service, gymnastic stadium, fitness service, etc, to integrate
the industry resources by flexible cooperative investment,
and develop sports and health industry.

The Group believes that the promotion and implementation of the
above measures will tremendously consolidate the competitive
edges of the Group in sports and health sectors in the future.
Although there might be an impact on the results indicators of the
Group in a short term due to the transformation and upgrading, it
is considered to be an inevitable stage for the better enhancement
of its long-term competitiveness and for the greater room for
development of the Group. We believe that the implementation
of the Group's sports and health industry strategies will form a
foundation for the future development and create a huge room for
the future development and growth of the Group as well as greater
value and returns to the consumers and Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible and has general powers for the management
and conduct of the business of the Group. The Board currently consists
of seven directors (the “Directors”, each a "Director”), including four
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The

Directors and Senior Management

EENSHREEE

E=

ERgHARERG EEMNRERBREEY
AHE—REERE EETAMMERES
(TEFDMHEK - BREEHITEETR =28
FRTEF - TREJNEHEFTEHENE

following table sets forth information regarding members of the Board. x} o

Name Appointment Date Age Position Roles and Responsibilities
®E ZEAH Fie B AGRBE

Mr. Shi Hongliu 2 September 2010 51 chairman and executive corporate strategic planning

MR ST A

Mr. Shi Hongyan

HesE L L

Mr. Shi Zhixiong

iy tas

Mr. Lui Wai Ming

EE#SELE

20109 H2H
2 September 2010 48
20109972H
1 December 2015 43

2015%12A1H

1 April 2016 46

201654 A1H

Director
EEREITES
vice chairman, chief

executive officer and
executive Director

BES=R  1TRAEN
WITES

executive Director

WITES

executive Director and
chief finance officer

HWITESRERUBE

and overall business
development of the Group
AREEM RIS B F1EEeE
XBER

developing and implementing
operation plans, and
monitoring the overall
manufacturing activities of
the Group
BERMNERASEN 2SS
REBERBEERD

overseeing the production and
supply chain management of
the Group
FEREEEE R MEEEIR

overseeing the finance and
capital market operation of
the Group
FERKEV B RERTIHE
1

HOSA International Limited ;&S EBBEHER AT

43



44

Directors and Senior Management

EENSREERE

Name

B

Appointment Date
ZEAM

Age
File

Position

L4

Roles and Responsibilities

ABRBE

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

=mE#zt

Mr. Yao Ge

mx kst

Mr. He Wenyi

(OpE ¥

23 November 2011

2011411 A23H

7 June 2011

20114%6H7H

1 December 2015

201512811
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independent non-executive
Director

BFBITES

independent non-executive
Director

BIUFRITES

independent non-executive
Director

BIFRITESR

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties, but
not participating in the day-
to-day management of the
business operations of the
Group
HREEESERABITE -
BRg2EAEEEKLEN
HEER

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties, but
not participating in the day-
to-day management of the
business operations of the
Group
HEEEESRARITRS -
BRg2EAEEEBLEN
HEER

attending meetings of the
Board to perform duties, but
not participating in the day-
to-day management of the
business operations of the
Group
HEESEERABITEE -
BRE2 MR B LEN
HEEE



Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Shi Hongliu

Aged 51, is the founder of the Hosa brand. He was appointed as the
chairman and executive Director on 2 September 2010. Mr. Shi has over
28 years of experience in the apparel industry and is primarily responsible
for the corporate strategic planning and overall business development of
the Group. From 1983 to 1996, he was a sole proprietor in the apparel
industry where he primarily engaged in distributing sportswear for women
in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou. From 1996 to 2011, he assumed
various positions at Fujian Province Jinjiang City Haosha Garments Co.,
Ltd. (“Haosha Garments”). From September 1996 to March 2000, he was
the chief brand manager of Haosha Garments responsible for formulating,
implementing brand strategy and improving the competitiveness of Hosa
brand. From March 2000 to March 2006, he was the general manager of
Haosha Garments responsible for developing and implementing business
development strategies and overseeing the overall administrative and
business activities of this company. From March 2006 to February 2011,
he was the supervisor of Haosha Garments. Since November 1997, he
has been a director of Haosha International (H.K.) Limited (“Haosha H.K.")
and is responsible for overlooking the operation, development strategy
as well as corporate investment activities of Haosha H.K. Since October
2005, being one of the founders of Haosha Industry (Fujian) Co., Ltd.
("Haosha Industry”), he has been the chairman of the board responsible
for overseeing the operation and investment activities of Haosha Industry
and general manager since January 2011. Mr. Shi Hongliu is a brother of
Mr. Shi Hongyan. Apart from being a Director, Mr. Shi Hongliu had not
been a director of any other listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Shi was selected as one of the “Top Ten Meritorious Entrepreneurs”
(+KIH BN %) at China's International Fashion Week by China National
Textile and Apparel Council (4 & %7 # T 2 # € ) in 2007, and “Brand
China Person of the Year (Apparel Industry)” (R B (REITE)EE
A#)) by Brand China Industry Alliance (a2 B Z2£F4 ) in 2010. He is
also the honorary chairman of the Chamber of Commerce of Jinjiang in
Shanghai (E8&/ IRgEEER).
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSREERE

Mr. Shi completed a diploma program for general managers of
enterprises (A24¢38R%2) of China Europe International Business School
(FPEXEIRE TR 22F) in December 2008.

Mr. Shi Hongliu is responsible for setting up overall future strategies
of the group, the financial and operational strategies and managing the
overall operations in Fujian Jinjiang and Beijing head office. Mr. Shi is
also the ultimate in-charge of the management accounting of the PRC
subsidiaries and the treasury functions of the Group.

Mr. Shi Hongyan

Aged 48, was appointed as the vice chairman, chief executive officer
and executive Director of the Company on 2 September 2010. Mr. Shi
Hongyan has over 20 years of experience in the apparel industry and is
primarily responsible for developing and implementing operation plans,
and monitoring the overall manufacturing activities of the Group. From
1988 to 1996, he was a sole proprietor in the apparel industry where
he primarily engaged in distributing sportswear for women in Beijing,
Shanghai and Guangzhou. From 1996 to 2011, he assumed various
positions at Haosha Garments. From September 1996 to March 2000,
he was the director of Haosha Garments responsible for establishing
management systems and overseeing the administrative and business
operations. From March 2000 to March 2006, he was the chief production
manager responsible for formulating and implementing the production
plans and supervising the production process. From March 2006 to
February 2011, he was the director and general manager of Haosha
Garments. Since October 2005, he has been the vice chairman of the
board of Haosha Industry. And from October 2005 to January 2011, he
was the general manager of Haosha Industry where he was responsible
for implementing production plans and overseeing the production
operation. Since January 2011, he has been the vice general manager of
Haosha Industry. Mr. Shi Hongyan is a brother of Mr. Shi Hongliu. Apart
from being a Director, Mr. Shi Hongyan had not been a director of any
other listed company in the past three years.
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Mr. Shi Hongyan currently assumes leadership roles in various
institutions, the details of which are set out in tabular format below.

Terms of Office

£

Directors and Senior Management

Position

B

EENSHREEE

HEMEHE ST A B AT S ARG - &
BRTRHES -

Name of Institution

HEER

August 2004-now
20048 AES

September 2005-now
2005F9AES

February 2006-now
20062 AE%

July 2008-now
20087 AES

August 2008-now
2008F8AES

2009-now

2009 %45

member of the first standing committee

BEERGZEEZE

vice chairman of the first council

HEEEgAER

vice chairman of the eighth council
ENEREZEEIER

vice chairman of the second council
FoEEEEAeR

vice chairman of the second council
F_EEEgRgR

member

z8

Quanzhou City Trademark Association

RMHERHE

Jinjiang City Textile and Apparel Association
EIMERERE

Jinjiang City Association of Industry and Commerce
LT Ll

Quanzhou City Association of Quality and Technical
Supervision
SN B R NEEHE

Fujian Province Apparel Industry Association
REARERMITEGE

The Eleventh Jinjiang City Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference

TREARBAHEEZRF +—EEITEZEE

Mr. Shi Hongyan was selected as one of the First Outstanding Young
Enterprising Talents in Quanzhou (& @ RINFFEFEIZEAA) in April
2005 and Outstanding Young Entrepreneurs of Fujian Province ({27 &8
FEFEPER) in November 2006.

Mr. Shi Hongyan completed a diploma program for chief executive
officers of enterprises ({b#42%, = HMAHELE) of the Economics College of
Peking University (35 R A2 487 £ 057) in 2003.

Mr. Shi Hongyan is mainly responsible for the public relationships of
the Group including attending different functions/events. He acts as the
spokesman in these event/functions.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSREERE

Mr. Shi Zhixiong

Aged 43, was appointed as the executive Director on 1 December 2015.
Mr. Shi Zhixiong worked at the research and development department of
Haosha Garments Co., Ltd. which is a fabric, dyeing and printing products
manufacturer, from 1996 to 2003 with his last position as manager.
Mr. Shi Zhixiong served as the sales director responsible for sales and
marketing development and deputy general manager responsible for
implementing business development strategies and overseeing the
business activities of Haosha Garments Co., Ltd. from 2003 to 2010 and
from 2010 to 2015 respectively. Mr. Shi Zhixiong possesses profound
knowledge and experiences in production and supply chain management.

Mpr. Lui Wai Ming

Aged 46, was appointed as the chief financial officer and executive
Director on 7 August 2015 and 1 April 2016 respectively. Mr. Lui Wai
Ming holds an Executive Master Degree in Business Administration from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in the People’s Republic
of China. Mr. Lui is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lui has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting, investment, financial and corporate management for
over 20 years. Mr. Lui is currently an independent non-executive director
of Xiao Nan Guo Restaurants Holdings Limited, a main board listed
company in Hong Kong (stock code: 3666). He was an independent non-
executive director of Tai Shing International (Holdings) Limited, a GEM
board listed company in Hong Kong (stock code: 8103) from 22 May 2014
to 29 Jan 2016 and Golden Shield Holdings (Industrial) Limited, a main
board listed company in Hong Kong (stock code: 2123) from 12 January
2015 to 11 May 2015, during the period he focused on investigation into
the outstanding audit issues and the legal proceedings, and the company
is currently under liquidation.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

Aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
23 November 2011. She has over 25 years of experience in financial
management and corporate finance and had worked in an international
accounting firm and other companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. She is currently the chief financial officer and company
secretary of China Lilang Limited (R BIF|EFBBR A F)) (stock code: 1234).
Ms. Ko is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants.
Apart from being a Director, Mr. Ko had not been a director of any other
listed company in the past three years. Ms. Ko graduated from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a professional diploma in management
accountancy in November 1984.

Mr. Yao Ge

Aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 7
June 2011. After his graduation in September 1994 to late 1994, Mr. Yao
was independently exploring the development of Japanese traditional
garments and its overall apparel market in Japan. In December 1994, he
returned to China and independently explored the Chinese apparel market
and industrial textile structure. In October 1996, he started working at the
marketing centre of China Fashion Association (7 B iR # & 1A 17 €), and
was later promoted to the deputy secretary general in December 1999
and the supervisor of the marketing centre in February 2001. He was
appointed as the deputy director of China’s Professional Fashion Models
Committee (REIBZRFERFZ 5 2) in July 2002. Since May 2003,
he has been the chairman of the board of directors of Beijing Oriental
Bentley Culture Development Co., Ltd. (Ht REF B H LR L),
Apart from being a Director, Mr. Yao had not been a director of any listed
company in the past three years.

Mr. Yao received silver award for Tokyo 21st Clothing Fashion Paintings
and Crafts Exhibition (RRZ21ERERITEMF TER) in 1993 and
recognition award for Japanese Apparel Fashion Design Contest (B 4Nk
#mI TR L) in 1994,

Mr. Yao received his college diploma in journalism from Shenyang Radio
and Television University (E[5EREERAE) in November 1988 and
went to Japan for advanced study in 1990. He completed a two-year
Japanese language course at Asahi International School (88 B BIFE£24%7) in
September 1992 and a two years' advanced study in garment design at
Tokyo Shimizu Institute (3R /57K %) in September 1994 and received
a certificate in garment design.
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EENSREERE

Mr. He Wenyi

Aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-executive director on
1 December 2015. Mr. He Wenyi is the deputy director of the Peking
University Institute for Sport Science as well as the executive officer
and the researcher of China Institute for Sports Value under the Peking
University.

Mr. He Wenyi studied in the Department of Philosophy of Peking
University, College of Philosophy and Sociology of Beijing Normal
University and School of Public Administration of Central South
University. He focused on the researches regarding cultural industries and
sports industries in the Peking University Institute for Cultural Industries
from 2001 to 2009.He works at the Peking University Institute for Sport
Science from 2009 up to now and his major research areas are sports
industries, cultural industries, intellectual property rights, philosophy
(ethics, religious studies), etc.

Mr. He Wenyi participated in the research and formulation of the reform
and development policies of national sports industries and has played a
role in the formulation of development plans of winter sports in China.
Mr. He was also the associate editor of Annual Report on Development
of Sports Industry in China, the associate editor of Development Report
of Sports Industry in Beijing, the editorial board member of the Annual
Report of Chinese Cultural Industries, the professional assessor of
Guiding Fund - 2 — for the Development of Sports Industry in Beijing, the
professional assessor of Support Fund for Cultural Industries in Beijing.
Moreover, he hosted the formulation of 13th Five-Year Plan for Sports
Industry in various counties in Beijing.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chiu Ming King was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) on 7 August 2015. Mr. Chiu
currently serves as the head of Corporate Services of Vistra Corporate
Services (HK) Limited. He has over 10 years of experience in the
company secretarial field and provides professional services to various
listed companies.

Mr Chiu has been an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries ("HKICS") since 2003 and became a fellow member of
the HKICS since September 2015. He has been a member of the
Membership Committee and Professional Services Panel of HKICS.

Mr Chiu obtained a bachelor of arts from University of Toronto in Canada
in June 1999 and received a master of arts in professional accounting
and information systems from City University of Hong Kong in November
2003.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures with a view to being a transparent
and responsible organization which is open and accountable to the
Shareholders. The Board strives to adhere to the principles of corporate
governance set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “"CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and has adopted sound corporate governance practices to meet
the legal and commercial standards, focusing on areas such as internal
control, fair disclosure and accountability to the Shareholders to ensure
the transparency and accountability of all operations of the Company. The
Company believes that effective corporate governance is an essential
factor to create more value for the Shareholders. The Board will continue
to review and improve the corporate governance practices of the Group
from time to time to ensure that the Group is led by an effective Board in
order to optimise return for the Shareholders.

During the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016, the
Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

THE BOARD

The Board consists of seven Directors, comprising four executive
Directors, and three independent non-executive Directors. The executive
Directors are Mr. Shi Hongliu (Chairman), Mr. Shi Hongyan (Vice
Chairman), Mr. Shi Zhixiong and Mr. Lui Wai Ming. The independent non-
executive Directors are Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, Mr. He Wenyi and Mr. Yao Ge.
Among members of the Board, Mr. Shi Hongliu is the elder brother of
Mr. Shi Hongyan. Save as disclosed herein, to the best knowledge of
the Company, there is no other financial, business or family relationship
among the members of the Board. The functions and duties conferred
on the Board include convening Shareholders’ meetings and reporting
on the work of the Board to the Shareholders at Shareholders’ meetings
as may be required by applicable laws, implementing resolutions passed
at Shareholders’ meetings, determining the Company's business plans
and investment plans, formulating the Company’s annual budget and
final accounts, formulating the Company's proposals for dividend and
bonus distributions as well as exercising other powers, functions and
duties as conferred on it by the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles”) and applicable laws. The senior management is delegated
with the authority and responsibilities by the Board for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group. The Board meets regularly
to review the financial and operating performance of the Company,
and considers and approves the overall strategies and policies of the
Company. The composition of the Board is well-balanced with the
Directors having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and
strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business
of the Group. The executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to the Company.
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TRERBBE

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of its independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmation, the
Company considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent and that they have met the specific independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors have separate and independent access to the Company's
senior management to fulfill their duties and, upon reasonable request,
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company's expense. All Directors also have access to the Company
Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures,
and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed. An agenda and
accompanying Board/Board committee papers are distributed to the
Directors/Board committee members with reasonable notice in advance
of the meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
committees, which records in sufficient detail the matters considered
by the Board and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by
Directors or dissenting views expressed, are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by Directors.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company, and considers and approves the overall
strategies and policies of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are two distinct
and separate positions, which are held by Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi
Hongyan, respectively, both being executive Directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Chiu Ming King. Mr. Chiu, who is the head
of Corporate Services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited providing
professional services to various listed companies. Although Mr. Chiu is
not a full time employee of the Company, he is responsible for advising
the Board on governance matters. Details of the biography of Mr. Chiu
are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of
this annual report.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, during the year
ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Chiu received not less than 15 hours
of the relevant professional training. The primary contact person of the
Company with the Company Secretary is the financial manager of the
Company, Mr. Hui Siu Wing.
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Corporate Governance Report

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company with terms of three years commencing
from 16 December 2014 for Ms. Ko Yuk Lan and Mr. Yao Ge and from 1
December 2015 for Mr. He Wenyi.

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board approved a new board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in August 2013. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members.
While all Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the
Company's business. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices, the Board
has established the following Board committees to oversee the particular
aspects of the Group's affairs. Each of these committees is consisted
wholly of or of a majority of independent non-executive Directors.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has been
established, in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules,
with written terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision C.3.3
of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group and to provide advice and comments to the Board. The
members meet regularly with the external auditors and the Company’s
senior management for the review, supervision and discussion of the
Company's financial reporting and internal control procedures and ensure
that management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system. The Audit Committee comprises three members,
namely Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, Mr. He Wenyi and Mr. Yao Ge, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters, was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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TRERBBE

Pursuant to the meetings of the Audit Committee on 8 March 2016 and
18 August 2016, the Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
and the six months ended 30 June 2016 respectively, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and the selection and
appointment of the external auditors. There had been no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee during the financial year
ended 31 December 2016.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee"”) has been established, in compliance with Rules 3.25
and 3.26 of the Listing Rules, with written terms of reference in
compliance with Code Provision of B.1.2 of the CG Code. The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to determine the
policies in relation to human resources management, to review the
compensation strategies, to determine the remuneration packages of
senior executives and managers, to approve the terms of the service
contract of the executive Directors, to assess the performance of the
executive Directors, to recommend and establish annual and long-term
performance criteria and targets as well as to review and supervise the
implementation of all executive compensation packages and employee
benefit plans. Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Board expects the Remuneration
Committee to exercise independent judgment and ensures that
executive Directors do not participate in the determination of their own
remuneration.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Remuneration Committee on 8 March
2016, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration
policy and structure relating to the Directors and senior management of
the Company.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) has been established, in compliance with Code Provision
A.5.1 of the CG Code, with written terms of reference in compliance with
Code Provision of A.5.2 of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, making recommendation to the Board on selection of candidates
for directorships, appointment, reappointment of Directors and Board
succession and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee will also give consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
members of the Board, and the Board will review the Board Diversity
Policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
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Pursuant to the meeting of the Nomination Committee on 8 March
2016, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and assessed independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.

Risk Management Committee

The risk management committee of the Company (the “Risk
Management Committee”) was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant requirements of Corporate
Governance Code. The principal responsibilities of the Risk Management
Committee are to monitor and review the Group's risk management
system and risk management policies and procedures and report to the
Board of the effectiveness of such system and procedures, and advise
the Board on the Group's risk-related matters.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Risk Management Committee on 18
August 2016, the Risk Management Committee has reviewed the risk
management system and risk management policies and procedures.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company's corporate governance function is carried out by the Board
pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the Board in
compliance with Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which include (a)
to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; (b) to review
and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of the
Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE

ERRESFHERE

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of REZE2016F12A31HIFFER  SMNES
the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination HEAARESS BfLES  FWHEE
Committee, Risk Management Committee and general meetings of the @ W IRELLEe  EREEZEeNEZNIR
Company during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below: BRemEALEESYT :
Risk
Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination Management General
Meeting  Committee ~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
EREE
Exeed BifZzE2g ¥MZEe REZEE ZEg BRRAE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Shi Hongliu (Chairman of the Board) it (E5EK) a4 NATEE O NATER  NATER i i
Mr. Shi Hongyan MR E Ay NATER  NATER 171 i 01
Mr. Shi Zhixiong WL 4/4 NA &R n NA TNER n 1n
Mr. Lui Wai Ming (appointed as executive & 154t (7201644818 33 NATER  NATER  NATER n n
Director and a member of Risk EZIARAEZLER
Management Committee on EEZEEHE)
1 April 2016)
Independent non-executive Directors BV HH/TEE
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan R o 44 22 N/A TEF N/A TEF N/A TEF 1
Mr. Yao Ge it 304 202 17 m NATER 01
Mr. He Wenyi XELE 44 212 17 m o NATER 01

None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate

Director.
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TEERWME

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT SIEEERRE

The Directors have been informed of the requirement under Code EECEBMCEEATHIEAGLESTANE
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code regarding continuous professional NHETEBHEEERENRTE - BEAR
development. According to the records maintained by the Company, the RIFE 28k MEZ=2016F12A31HLIEF
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the roles, B HEESFESUTG  LHERMES
functions and duties of a director of a listed company in compliance with AT EREESXERREIENTETE B8
the new requirement of the Corporate Governance Code on continuous RETRARNEENAR B MEE

professional development during the year ended 31 December 2016:

Corporate Governance/ Accounting/Financial/

Updates on Laws, Management or Other
Rules and Regulations Professional Skills
EER EE - RAR g5t 0 EER
EREH HithE R
Attend Attend
Read Seminars/ Read Seminars/
Name of Director materials  Briefings materials  Briefings
HE HE
g g,
EEEH MEEHR IGESA=] FEEHR IGE A=
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Shi Hongliu HEsE TS 4 4 4 v
(Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Shi Hongyan MEISIE ST v 4 v v
Mr. Shi Zhixiong HERE S A / v v v
Mr. Lui Wai Ming (appointed as EEH# A (201654818 4 4 v v
executive Director and a member of ~ EZFAIHFE=LEARKRE
Risk Management Committee on 1 BKE)
April 2016)
Independent non-executive Directors BV EHiTEE
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan BEWLL 4 v v v
Mr. Yao Ge B Rk v v v v/
Mr. He Wenyi A FEEE v 4 v v
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TRERME

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for securities transactions
by the Directors. Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors
and all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2016 which give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group at that date and of the Group’s financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended and are properly prepared on the going
concern basis in accordance with the applicable statutory requirements
and accounting standards.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company has appointed KPMG as the auditor of the Company.
The fees for the audit and review services provided by the auditors
to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to
RMB2,702,000.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company concerning their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 90
to 97 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. These systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Internal control and risk
management systems are reviewed annually to ensure its continuous
effectiveness. The Company has established written policies and
procedures applicable to all operating units to ensure the effectiveness
of internal controls and risk management. The Group constantly
allocates resources to internal control and risk management systems,
reasonably (but not absolutely) guarantees that no material misstatement
or loss will be incurred, and manages (but not eliminates) the risks of
failing to achieve business objectives. The Group has in place a risk
management framework which has the following five components:
risk identification, risk assessment, risk treatment, reporting and
monitoring. This framework is subject to continuous improvement and
was in place throughout 2016 and up to the date of this report. The key
risks of the Group are summarized in the paragraph headed “Principal
Risks and Uncertainties” in the Management Discussion and Analysis set
out on pages 12 to 36 of this Annual Report. The day-to-day operation is
entrusted to the individual department, which is accountable for its own
conduct and performance, and is required to strictly adhere to the policies
set by the Board.

The Company has established internal audit function and regularly carries
out reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control in order to ensure
that they are able to meet and deal with the dynamic and ever changing
business environment.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review and
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's internal control
systems including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management. Such review and assessment covered the financial,
compliance and operational controls as well as risk management
mechanisms. The Board believes that the existing risk management and
internal control system is adequate and effective.

The Company has adopted an Inside Information Policy and provided
trainings to employees and directors related to inside information in order
to ensure the company is compliance with regulatory requirements.
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SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

How Shareholders can convene an extraordinary general meeting
and putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholder holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the secretary of the Company by mail at Unit 1902, 19/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the secretary of the Company by mail at Unit 1902,
19/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or by email
at hosa@wsfg.hk. The Company Secretary forwards communications
relating to matters within the Board's direct responsibilities to the Board
and communications relating to ordinary business matters, such as
suggestions, inquiries and customer complaints, to the chief executive
officer of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear, timely and
effective communication with the Shareholders and investors of the
Company. The Board also recognises that effective communication with
its investors is critical in establishing investor confidence and to attract
new investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining a high
degree of transparency to ensure the investors of the Company and
the Shareholders will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely
information of the Group through the publication of annual reports, interim
reports, announcements and circulars. The Company also publishes all
corporate communications on the Company’s website at www.hosa.
cn. The Board maintains regular dialogues with institutional investors
and analysts from time to time to keep them informed of the Group's
strategy, operations, management and plans. The chairman of the Board
and members of various Board committees will attend the annual general
meeting of the Company to answer questions raised by the Shareholders.
The resolution of every important proposal will be proposed at general
meetings separately.

Voting at general meetings of the Company is conducted by way of poll in
accordance with the Listing Rules. The poll results will be announced at
general meetings and published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. In addition, the Company regularly meets with
institutional investors, financial analysts and financial media, and promptly
releases information related to any significant progress of the Company,
so as to promote the development of the Company through mutual and
efficient communications.
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RERTEEMERS

PROLOGUE

This is the first environmental and social responsibility report of Hosa
International Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group"), which
is disclosed with reference to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide provided by Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Unless otherwise stated, this report covers relevant policies on two major
areas, namely environmental responsibility and social responsibility, of the
Group and its brands, factories and offices for the period commencing
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016 (collectively, the “Year”).

The Group, as a corporate citizen, understands that it shall take
responsibilities to each stakeholder, including staff, suppliers, clients,
investors, and natural environment. The Group has all along made
great efforts to perform its responsibilities, and it hopes to fulfill its
social responsibilities as a corporate citizen while carrying out business
development, by implementing policies in relation to the protection of
natural environment and the promotion of social development on one
hand and considering the interests of each stakeholder on the other hand.
The Group reviews itself constantly and would like to perform better
in areas of caring for stakeholders and environmental protection. We
are pleased to hear from you, please email us at hosa@wsfg.hk for any
suggestions to our policies on environmental and social responsibility.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group attaches great importance to environmental protection, and
has implemented green and low-carbon production method, controlled
emission volume and waste, reduced consumption of resources and
proactively carried out environmental protection works through various
measures, which include improving waste recycling system, installing
modern production equipment with energy conservation, and encouraging
staff on energy conservation and waste reduction. The Group has also
stringently complied with the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Energy Conservation Law of the People's
Republic of China and other relevant regulations.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT K%

EV

]

jilllg

TREBEDEBRER AT REKB AR (4
BAEEDONEOHREMMEETRSE - &
RMERZERFBHARGBRARZ LT
B ER27 R B[ ]R3% - (b g R EAREES
FriEE - R BB HBAIN - AREZSREAEE
FHETHMIE - THRERHAER20165F1 81
B#EZE20165F12 A31 B IL (SR AEE )it
BRERMSETMEEEEHE 2 EEECE -

ERTEAR  AEEPAREHSHNOEA
B BIEEL - #ER TP REE B
RRREE - FEB—EFRFRCOE  FEEE
E¥BEEORE  JURLEEARNEME
—HEEEREERBREIMEELRERNK
% S AHRESFOHENNG - NERK
Zat - BLEERERHE MMRERTNHE
HSEL  RMEBERETHER  WEAT
HAREBAIRRREEEEBCR B EREE -
BB H Ehosa@wsfg.hk °

RERIR

AEEFFERRBRE - BBTEEAER
BIE - ZRBACOEREEERE ZBET
FiRE SR DR B E GG - Bitsr e EiREED
& BHIBREMERY) - REBRER - K
SEBERERERERTIE - YEBRKRET(REA
RAMBRERELR)  (PEARKMBEELL
BETRE A R B ARREAAR ©



Environmental and Social Responsibility Report

The Group procured its fabric and dyeing and printing services from
third party suppliers, and the production process of which only involves
simple processing operation, such as cutting and sewing, and only
produces small amount of waste water and harmless waste, such as
wastepaper, packaging materials, remnants and plastic materials, rather
than producing harmful waste gas directly. The Group has a strict system
to deal with waste water and solid waste, and we have implemented the
following policies for the Year, including but not limited to:

Conducting sample safety inspection on waste water produced in
the office and during the production and operation process. It will
suspend the emission and follow up the issue in a timely manner
when there is an excessive concentration of waste water;

Classifying wastes produced during the production process instead
of discarding directly. Recyclable waste will be reused after
processing, whereas those cannot be recycled will be stored and
sold to waste buyers regularly;

Reducing pollutants produced in the daily life of staff, such as
installing underground smog emission system at the canteen,
which helps reducing the effect of oil fumes produced in the
process of cooking on nearby residents and staff to the minimal
level, setting garbage classification bins inside the factories to
divide garbage into recyclable and non-recyclable, and providing
free food waste from the canteen to farmers for recycling, etc..

The Group is always promoting energy conservation, and hopes to
decrease the cost of production while protecting the environment.
During the Year, we have implemented the following policies on energy
conservation, including but not limited to:

Encouraging staff to save power and water, and fulfilling
environmental responsibility by individuals, such as requesting
staff to switch off power consuming equipment instantly during
off-hours, including lightings, air-conditioners and computers. A
detailed record of mileage and fuel consumption of official business
vehicles will be included in the performance assessment of relevant
departments for regular reporting and analysis;

Regularly checking water equipment, replacing and repairing
damaged water supply and emission systems in a timely manner,
and installing water-saving faucets;

Choosing with preference to use energy-saving equipment with low
power consumption, which includes installing energy-saving LED
lighting systems, putting resources in installing heat pump water
heaters with energy conservation and environmental protection to
provide hot water for production purposes, etc;

Using recycled paper packaging as possible on the packaging
design for products to reduce plastic packaging as far as possible.
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Employee and Working Environment

Regarding employees as valuable assets, the Group has been striving to
create a safe and healthy working environment for employees over these
years, and to retain talents through improving the training system and
providing competitive remuneration and welfare.

There are three major principles for the Group to recruit and promote
staff, namely transparent positions, equal assessment and fair evaluation.
All applicants shall have an opportunity on equal assessment, and the
Group will conduct appraisal on such applicants based on interview
performance, academic background, work experience, etc.. The
same practice of equality without discrimination as well as the same
remuneration basis will be adopted for staff of a different gender and
race.

The Group pays attention to the work-life balance of staff. A number
of staff activities have been held for our staff during the Year, such as
choral competition, mid-autumn evening party, lunar new year dinner,
etc., creating a healthy working environment with delightful atmosphere,
which helps enhancing their sense of belonging to the Group. The Group
also sets standard working hours by taking into consideration the position
and department the employee belongs to, and prohibits its staff from
working excessive overtime for specified hours, unless permission is
given by the department head. All staff shall be entitled to a particular
number of days of annual leave no less than such as required by the laws
depending on their positions, departments and working years.

The Group has optimized mature system for remuneration management
with reference to remuneration rates in the industry so as to offer
our staff with equal and fair remuneration, thereby motivating them
effectively. Apart from basic wages, our staff will also receive a year-end
bonus as well as various welfare, such as holiday fee, marriage gifts, and
allowance for dispatched labour, according to working performance. In
addition, the Group strictly requires that all salaries for staff shall be paid
on time every month, and makes contribution to insurance and retirement
pension schemes for its staff of an amount no less than that as required
by local laws.
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In order to prevent unreasonable dismissal, the Group has an optimized
system for resignation management, which stipulates that all dismissal
shall be proposed with sufficient ground. Department heads shall
communicate with the department of human resources and the
department will make suggestions on the dismissal based on the
situation of the employee concerned, which shall be subject to the final
approval of the management. The department of human resources shall
liaise with the employee concerned not only to get well-prepared for
the leaving of the employee but also ensuring equal treatment for such
employee and to relieve the negative emotion of the employee.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working environment for
its staff, and stringently complies with relevant regulations on staff safety
and fire safety. During the Year, we have implemented the following
measures to protect staff safety, including but not limited to:

° Promoting escape precaution and conducting drills against typhoon,
fire and earthquake hazards regularly

° Operating a self-owned canteen and setting up a safety committee
to conduct routine inspection in respect of the hygiene and food
safety of the canteen to ensure food security

° Providing regular trainings and lectures regarding safety issue for
employees
o Organizing the measure of 24-hour security by the administration

department by arranging patrol duty within areas with potential
safety hazard regularly

o Distributing protective appliances, including masks, head covers
and wired gloves, to staff that participate in fabric inspection,

warehousing, cutting and other production processes

° Installing fire facilities and emergency lighting systems in factories
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RERTEEMERS

Employee Development and Training

In order to improve the knowledge and skills of staff, the Group has
established a sound training system and a training department specifically
responsible for training. In order for new recruits to understand the
profile, rules and regulations, corporate culture and the overall operation
of the enterprise, new recruits will receive different training courses
based on their positions and departments. The Group will also provide
regular training courses for all existing staff to consolidate and update
their knowledge and skills.

Other than imparting knowledge to the staff, training courses will
also include assessment and internship stages, and provide targeted
recommendations to staff based on the assessment results in order to
consolidate their future development. The Group also invests in resources
to develop an online training platform called Ho Xue Network College to
let all staff participate in training through mobile phones and computers
at anytime, in anywhere, thereby greatly enhancing the convenience, and
the staff will be more interested in training through a lively and interesting
way of learning.

In addition, the Group has established a “new staff training mentor
program”. We will appoint senior staff as the mentor of new recruits.
In addition to providing guidance to the new staff on work methods and
skills, answering their problems encountered, the senior staff will also set
good examples to guide the new staff in respect of the corporate culture
S0 as to integrate the new staff into the Company as soon as possible.

Labor Standards

The Group strictly complies with the PRC and Hong Kong labor laws and
is prohibited from employing child labor, forced or compulsory labor. The
employment of all staff of the Group was conducted in accordance with
local labor laws during the year.

Supply Chain Management
The Group is committed to protecting the environment and avoiding any
negative impact on the society. To ensure the health and safety of the

raw materials provided by the suppliers, the Group has established a
Supplier Management System and strictly abides by it.
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The Group will conduct an on-site evaluation on suppliers in accordance
with the Supplier Management System and engage professional testing
organizations for the testing of products from suppliers. The Group
will review suppliers on the basis of, including but not limited to, the
followings:

1. review whether the production procedures of suppliers are in
compliance with local laws and regulations, industry norms and
product safety requirements;

2. review whether the suppliers have made every effort to protect the
environment and provide safe working environment for their staff;

3. review whether the product quality, production equipment and
price, etc. of the suppliers, is in line with the requirements of the
Group.

In the event that the Group finds that the suppliers have violated the laws,
damage the environment or fail to provide safe working environment for
the staff, the Group will give a warning or even cease the partnership.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to providing customers with quality products.
We have a legal department for registration and management of our
trademarks and intellectual property rights. If any trademark infringement
of the Group is found in the market, then the legal department will require
the other party to remove the infringement products from the shelves
and take legal actions to protect consumers. The Group will also take the
initiative to visit distributors to collect feedbacks and recommendations
on the quality of the products, prepare written reports on the
recommendations and feedbacks collected and carry out discussion and
improvement on the products.

To ensure that the products bought by consumers are healthy and
safe, the Group has a strict quality inspection system from selection of
suppliers, design and development to the production process to make
sure the products meet the safety standards issued by China General
Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine (B
B BESBEBBZLE), Standardisation Administration of the People’s
Republic of China (FBBRIZXE/LEIEZ EE) and other relevant
regulatory authorities. In the event that any defects or safety problems
are found in the products, the products will be recalled or remedied
according to the Return and Replacement Process of Defective Products.

The Group understands that consumers attach great importance
to personal privacy. Being a responsible social citizen, the Group is
committed to protecting the personal information of consumers. The
Group has formulated a comprehensive information security policy, and
has strictly required the staff to comply with the policies on collection,
usage, storage and disposal of consumers’ information.
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REREESERS

Anti-corruption

The Group prohibits any form of corruption, bribery or fraud. The Group
has a clear Anti-corruption Code, and encourages the staff to report any
cases suspecting violation of the Anti-corruption Code. If anyone who has
been found to violate such code, he shall be subject to disciplinary action.
There are no any confirmed corruption incidents of the Group during the
Year.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group has been concerned about the needs of the community while
developing its business, and has actively developed resources to benefit
the community and the public to fulfill the responsibility of corporate
citizenship for years. The Group organized a number of sports and health
activities which were open to the public, sponsored and supported
hundreds of tournaments such as National Swimming Tournament,
National Aerobics Tournament and other swimming, aerobics, running,
fitness events.

Election of Wuhan Health Ambassador

In order to enhance the health awareness of the public, pay attention
to health, and participate in sports, the Group promoted the election
of Wuhan health ambassador with Leshi in Wuhan in January 2016.
The election was held in the city station in Wuhan, and the public was
invited to participate in the experience of smart sports, carry out review
and election in sports, and promote healthy culture and health concept
through interaction, performance, awards and other sections. The local
public actively participated in the activity in Wuhan, and a number of
media were concerned about and reported on the events, spread and
promoted the stylish and healthy urban lifestyle.
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National Handstand Challenge

In order to spread the health concept, call on the public to achieve healthy
life through sports, the Group launched a National Fitness Handstand
Challenge with Beijing TV sports channel in Beijing in November 2016,
and invited Beijing citizens to participate in the handstand challenge in
order to promote the concept of enjoying sports and enjoying health. 200
citizens participated in the activity, and the concept of health was spread
through dissemination and promotion by Beijing TV.

“Hosa Cup” 2016 National Rhythmic Gymnastics Grand Prix

The event was organized by the Gymnastics Management Center of
General Administration of Sport of China and the China Gymnastics
Association, and was sponsored by the Administration of Sport of Fujian,
Datian County Municipal Government and Hosa Group. The event
attracted a total of 11 teams with 82 participants across the country.
Under support and cooperation of the Gymnastics Management Center
of General Administration of Sport of China, the event successfully
promoted the mass cultural and sports activities such as aerobics, line
dance, square fitness dance and other activities, and called on the public
to achieve healthy life through sports.
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RENTCEEERE

Sponsored Events and Activities

To support the country to nurture future sports talents and promote
health concept, the Group also sponsored, including but not limited to,
the following events and activities during the Year:

1.

Sponsor of the FINA 10KM Marathon Swimming World Cup
and Diving World Series

In order promote the international marathon swimming and
diving culture and the development of sports industry, the Group
sponsored FINA 10KM Marathon Swimming World Cup and Diving
World Series for two consecutive years. The first match of the
Marathon Swimming World Cup in the Year started in Argentina in
February, and ended successfully in Hong Kong in October. Lasting
for more than eight months with seven races, the event is held in
a number of countries in Asia, Europe and America, gathering the
enthusiasm of the swimming enthusiasts over the world to jointly
challenge the limit of water sports.
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Serving as title sponsors of Chinese swimming team in
provincial level

During the Year, the Group provided swimwear and equipment to
swimmers of Chinese provincial level swimming teams, including:
Beijing Water Cube Team, Heilongjiang Hosa team, Shanghai Hosa
team, Anhui Hosa team, Jiangxi Hosa team, Shandong Hosa team,
Shaanxi Hosa team and Ningxia Hosa team, which contributed to
the healthy development of national sports industry and contributed
to construction of healthy China.
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Serving as title sponsor of Adolescents Swimming Contest

The Group has long been concerned about the healthy growth
of the youth, provides a platform to the youth for swimming and
training, and actively nurtures the healthy lifestyle of the youth,
hoping to pass the concept of health and happiness to more people
in order to contribute to the goal of healthy China. During the Year,
the Group sponsored a number of youth and student swimming
competitions, including the “Hosa Cup” 16th College Swimming
Championships, “Hosa Cup” the third Xia Jin Adolescents
Swimming Championships, “Hosa Cup” Adolescents Swimming
Championships in Shaanxi Province.

Environmental and Social Responsibility Report
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Sponsor of the Chinese Synchronized Swimming Team of Rio
Olympic

In order to promote healthy development of national sports and
contributed to construction of healthy China, the Group designed
competition swimsuits for the Chinese synchronized swimming
team in the Rio Olympic Games this year. Chinese contestants
can strive for national honor in the stage of Olympic with Hosa
swimsuits.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design
and production of a wide range of mid-to-high end sportswear products,
including swimwear, fitness wear and sports underwear, which are sold
under the well-known Hosa and Water Cube brand.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, an indication of likely future developments
in the Group’s business and stakeholder relationship, can be found in
the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 12 to 36
of this annual report. In addition, details of the Group’s environmental
policies and compliance with laws and regulations can be found in the
Environmental and Social Responsibility Report set out on pages 62 to
72 of this annual report. The discussion and the report form part of this
report of the Directors.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2016
are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 90 to 163 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK4.2 cents (equivalent to approximately
RMB3.6 cents) per share was paid to our Shareholders during the year.
The Board recommended the distribution of a final dividend of HK2.3
cents (equivalent to approximately RMB2.1 cents) per share in cash to
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing a
total payout of approximately RMB34.5 million, subject to approval by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting (“AGM") to be held on
Friday, 28 April 2017.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 164 to 168.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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EETHRE

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group are
set out in note 22 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$41,417,000. Details of the distributable
reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 22
to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2016 amounted to RMB nil (2015: RMB2,200,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 22 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Shi Hongliu (Chairman)
Mr. Shi Hongyan (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Shi Zhixiong
Mr. Lui Wai Ming (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 1 April 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

Mr. Yao Ge

Mr. He Wenyi
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Report of the Directors

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the existing independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

Each of the executive Directors on the Board had entered into a service
contract with the Company for terms of three years commencing from
16 December 2011 for Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi Hongyan, from
1 December 2015 for Mr. Shi Zhixiong and from 1 April 2016 for Mr.
Lui Wai Ming and thereafter may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing or payment in lieu of such notice served by
either party on the other. The service contracts are automatically renewed
upon expiration.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors on the Board had
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company with terms of
three years commencing from 16 December 2014 for Ms. Ko Yuk Lan
and Mr. Yao Ge, and from 1 December 2015 for Mr. He Wenyi and
thereafter may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by the respective independent non-executive Director on
the Company, and by immediate notice in writing served by the Company
on the respective independent non-executive Director.

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Shi Hongliu, Mr.
Shi Hongyan and Mr. Yao Ge will retire from the Board by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, all being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 43 to 50 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed herein, for the year ended 31 December 2016,
none of the Directors had any direct or indirect material interest in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries and subsidiaries
of its holding company was a party and remained subsisting at the end of
the year.
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EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company had the following interests or short positions in the shares (the
"Shares"), underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO")) which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, including interests and short positions which the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company are taken and deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO, or which are required to be and are
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the

ESERBETHRAERKRG - HE
R0 R MBS ERE R XR

72016%12A318 * ARAREZERESTTH
ABRADR REBEE®E (TR RLES RS
EIEOI([FHREEEG ) EXVE) (ARG
([R&R]) « HERG REFF - BB TRE
BELHEEHIEXVIBET RSN SBME K
AR BT ERSAR (BREREES R
HEENNEBIE X EIESRARNARES
MESTRAEBRENERZIAR) AR
BIARIBES A SR EI2EREFE
RERMA - SUREIEESTRIZAMNE AR R &

SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code:

B PTEV R SOR R

Number of
Shares subject to Approximate
options granted percentage of
Under the Share shareholding in
Option Scheme the Company/
Capacity/ adopted on associated
Name of Director Name of company Nature of interest Number of Shares 23 November 2011 corporations
BiE201F
11 A23 B &M
BRES BRI RAAR,/
BRES RN HE =B
EEpg NRER 5t ERiE RIEE ROHAE RESAEIL
Mr. Shi Hongliu™ The Company Interests of controlled 829,884,859 - 49.78%
corporations (Long position)
iRy ivie =l ART REEHEB RS (1#%&)
The Company Beneficial interests 500,000 - 0.03%
(Long position)
AR i (#8)
Mr. Shi Hongyan Ho Born Investment Beneficial interests 26,233 - 26.23%
Holdings Limited
HEBIE 7 A ERBRERREBRAR Ealksn
Mr. Lui Wai Ming The Company Beneficial interests = 1,500,000 0.09%
FiEshrt ARF Enttn
Notes: st -

m Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group Limited are Y
beneficially owned as to 49.85% by Mr. Shi Hongliu. Mr. Shi Hongliu is therefore
deemed to be interested in the aggregate of 829,884,859 Shares held by Ho Born

Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group Limited.
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Report of the Directors

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which had been recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which had been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

At no time was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) to hold any interest or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme") on 23 November 2011 for the purpose of giving
certain eligible persons an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company and motivating them to optimise their future performance
and efficiency to the Group and/or rewarding them for their past
contributions, and attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-
going relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant to
and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance,
growth or success of the Group. Options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 20,500,000 Shares were granted on 23 November 2011. The exercise
price per Share is HK$1.28, representing a discount of 20% to the global
offering price per Share. Save as disclosed below, no further options
were granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme prior to the Listing
Date. All options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may
be exercised in the following manner:

Exercise period

6

EETHRE

B EXXHEEIN  A20165E12 A311 - i
ARBEEREZBTRABRAAR REE
BAE (T & RESF RS KM EXVER) B
19~ RS RESFP - BEIWRAEEE
TIARDR RIRIEE KA E G 35216 E
FEMNZLMA - SURBIZESRIZBME AR
EIPSE S SRR =

ARE - EERA R SEAFME R RER
AINAEARY  EARBAEEREETHRA
B(BRBRENEBERMISHRTFLIRAR
Bl EAREOEE (E& B E s R B RAIEXV
)M - HERDHESFPEHE TR

S -
BRETE
ER AR AT R

ARATR201MFE11 A23BHEME X AR
ERTERE B ([ BN AR SR I
g BERTETEERATIRARRES
EAREOKE  WHBHRSENARAKRESR
MHRERBERER - &/ R EEBENE
BR 4G T H42ED) - LAR S| ¥ 88 s LA B 4th 5 =X B2 3%
SHREFENHKRER - BESARINDBEER,
HEBBBAFREEEFINAEBRRIE - 2
REKINHABIEATHITFERTIE -
A R EE A ££20,500,000 0% % 17 7 &% B AE 2
2011F 11 B23BEH - BRITHEEA1.2878
TC o BMEBRBRMDHEIREEETE20% - B
TXWEEI - B ETEER - HEREER
NFAZERN B EE— SR TBRE - BT
AREE RN ARBES AR 8RN B
R T 55 RAT1E

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

AFTEBRENRSE DL

Anytime after the first anniversary of the Listing Date

LA SEBFROEMER

Anytime after the second anniversary of the Listing Date
L EAE ZBFRNOEARRE

Anytime after the third anniversary of the Listing Date
B =R R

30 % of the total number of options granted

BT BRELEM30%

30 % of the total number of options granted

EREBEZEEHN30%

40 % of the total number of options granted

B BRELEM40%
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Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

R2016F12A31H » BREH X AFAEERHE
AR BN FBT

No. of No. of As at
As at share option share lapsed/ 31 December
1 January 2016 Exercised expired 2016
20165 BREHE BRERR A20164F
Name =L 1818 BTfE  BRRBH 12A31H
Past Directors BEIES
In aggregate =3 4,959,000 1,939,000 3,020,000 -
Senior management SREEE
In aggregate &3 1,480,000 1,480,000 - -
Other employees Hitfgg
In aggregate A 3,915,000 3,915,000 - -
Others Hity
In aggregate &H 1,061,000 1061,000 - -
Total et 11,415,000 8,395,000 3,020,000 -

3,020,000 share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme were lapsed or cancelled for the year ended 31 December 2016.
8,395,000 share options were exercised during the same period.

The total number of shares available for issue under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is nil, representing approximately 0% of the Company's
issued share capital as at the date of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”)
on 23 November 2011 for the purpose of giving certain eligible persons
an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and motivating
them to optimise their future performance and efficiency to the Group
and/or rewarding them for their past contributions, and attracting and
retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships with, such
eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at the Listing Date, i.e. 1,600,000,000 Shares. The maximum
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme to any one person (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the
Board and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant. There is
no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay
the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on or before 28 days
after the offer date. The exercise price of the options is determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is
the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of a Share;

(b)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer; and

(c) the average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the Listing Date, after which no further options will be granted
or offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain
in force and effect in all other respects. All options granted prior to the
termination of the Share Option Scheme and not then exercised shall
continue to be valid and exercisable subject to and in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme.

EETHRE

RAITERIBERET 8 R A S B A E M S
TR R AR ] B TR SRS
HE AEABBBN ETAPBETRD
(B11,600,000,000/% 8% 17 ) #110% ° 1R IREERR
EFFEIREM—BATREERE(BEETT
F R ARBITENERE) BITEMEETRE
FEITHN & KM EE REM12(8 8 BT
BHBBTREEEITRNOE1% -

FiHBEES T RBEBIEABNERRES
SETNHMAREETTE - ENMSEERHA
HIERH109F - SOBBREETEN T ERE
FAH o BAVERT 312 ME RN FTIR B
Pt - ARNBEX R 28A R ZHIAAR
A 1.0 - BEENTEEREZS S
BRBEE - HTRETNSERUTRSE

(@) BROEE:

(b) IR EL AR AE R RERM
WEOUTHE - &

(0 ERZYHRYNREZEXEBIMEA
RERPTMA FHETE -

BREEm EmAREM0FA—EBX
KA HET RN IR HOBERE - 8
BRERT MR E B R T EIDAB R
R BB Bl LRI B M RTT(E
HY 2 BRIE AR (D A B 2L AT AR IR B SR A 81 7
IATTHE -
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Details of the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

R2016F12 A31H » BIEEREEREHN
BAERRERT

As at Granted Exercised As at
Name of 1 January during the during the 31 December Date of Exercise
director 2016 period period 2016 Exercise price grant period
A20164F
R20165F 12A31H
EEHA 181H Ml BT EARTE BRITEE BEAH TS
Mr. Lui Wai - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 HK$2.37 1 April 2016  (Notes (i) and (ii))
Ming
BREHLE 2377870 2016F4 A1 8 (A1aL6) i)
Total:
=Hr 8 - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Notes: it

(i) The closing price immediately before the date on which the options were granted

on 1 April 2016 was HK$2.20.

(ii) Details of exercise period of the share options granted to Mr. Lui Wai Ming are as

follows:

Exercise period

1T

0] ZEN2016F4 1 AR BRES B mE
£2.2077C °

(i)  RTEERBEENBLETERFBDOT:

Percentage of exercisable share options

AFTEBRENT DL

1 April 2018 to 31 March 2021
20184318 %E202143A31H

1 April 2019 to 31 March 2021
20194318 %E202143A31H

1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021
20204318 %E202143A31H

30% of the total number of share options granted
B H B R ERZH30%

30% of the total number of share options granted
BB R ERZH30%

40% of the total number of share options granted
BRI ERERZH40%

The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 158,500,000, representing approximately 9.5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital as at the date of this annual report.

No share options granted under the Share Option Scheme were lapsed,
exercised or cancelled for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Schemes” above, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director of the
Company or their respective spouses or minor children, or were such
rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other
body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, as
at 31 December 2016, the persons or corporations (other than Director
or chief executive of the Company) who had interest or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

EEEHRE

ESREROIESFNTH

B £ RERHERT &) I FTIEEE S - AR RIBLE
REREARRARAREFNES - HERE
BB SRR R F 2R HAER - FELAREE AR
RRR D B MERRE - MRE IR ETT
BEMZEREN AR - HERARSEME
B A R ERT L E M2 - B AR RE
EAFEB AR R R ST EAE A B R
AT 75 (B ES) MEEFa -

FERRRROGRERRGHNVEDS
NP

58729

MARRMEMESKEZEITHRABRAM - R
201612 A318 * AT ATSCEE (WIEAR
RIBEERERTRAR)RARF RN MIERH
B BEEREESRBEEFIEXVIEE
2R3DEREXBH T T AR B MR A
B RENARIEE SIS IEH 336158
EFENELMARNERSAE

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding in

Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares the Company
HAA B RAER
BRERERE B RERHE BRBEE BHRED
Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited™ Beneficial interests 710,076,859 42.59%
(Long position)
IEFRIREERAR AR Bamtm (&F8)
Well Born Industrial Group Limited® Beneficial interests 119,808,000 7.19%
(Long position)
BEHEXEEBR AR B m (4FE)
Mr. Fang Chengyu Beneficial interests 101,956,000 6.12%
(Long position)
TR & B (4FE)
Notes: Hiat -
(1) Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi Hongyan, executive Directors, are two of the (1) FITESMEIR T RIEIRIRE £ RE IR E T
directors of Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group BERARLREREXEEFRARINMBE
Limited. £
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company are not aware of any other person
or corporation having an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would require to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Haosha Industry, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company,
has entered into certain transactions with Haosha Garments.

CONNECTED PERSON

Haosha Garments is a limited liability company established in the PRC
on 24 October 1996, and is owned as to 75% by Mr. Shi Hongliu and
25% by Mr. Shi Hongyan, respectively. Mr. Shi Hongliu is an executive
Director and is entitled to exercise more than 30% of the voting power at
general meetings of Haosha Garments. Accordingly, Haosha Garments is
an associate of Mr. Shi Hongliu under Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules and
therefore a connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.07 of the
Listing Rules.

The continuing connected transactions
(a) Procurement agreement with Haosha Garments

On 7 June 2011, Haosha Industry, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, entered into a procurement agreement
with Haosha Garments, whereby Haosha Garments agreed to
supply its fabric products to Haosha Industry from time to time for
Haosha Industry to manufacture Hosa branded indoor sportswear
products. The procurement agreement is for a term from 1 January
2011 to 31 December 2013 renewable for a further three years at
the option of Haosha Industry subject to compliance with applicable
requirements of the Listing Rules. Haosha Industry has the right to
terminate the procurement agreement at any time before expiration
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

In order to continue the relevant transactions with Haosha
Garments after 31 December 2013, Haosha Industry entered into
a new procurement agreement (“New Procurement Agreement”)
with Haosha Garments on 19 December 2013, whereby Haosha
Industry agreed to purchase from Haosha Garments, and Haosha
Garments agreed to sell to Haosha Industry, fabric products from
time to time. The New Procurement Agreement is for a term of
three years, from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016, and is
renewable for another three year at the option of Haosha Industry
subject to compliance with applicable requirements of Listing Rules.
The annual caps for the transactions under the New Procurement
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December 2016
are RMB3,000,000, RMB3,800,000 and RMB4,500,000.

On 22 November 2016, Haosha Industry and Haosha Garment
entered into a new procurement agreement for a term from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019. For details of the procurement
agreement, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 22 November 2016.

Haosha Garments has been a fabric products provider of the
Group and the Group expects itself to continue procuring fabric
products from Haosha Garments in view of their long-term
business relationship, which enables Haosha Garments to respond
to the order requests of the Group in a more prompt and accurate
manner compared with other independent suppliers of similar
products available in the market, as well as the proximity between
Haosha Garments and Haosha Industry, which helps reduce the
transportation costs. The prices at which the Group procures the
fabric products from Haosha Garments are based on terms that are
comparable to those available from independent suppliers of similar
products, on arm’s length negotiation and on normal commercial
terms.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group procured
fabric products of RMB3.46 million from Haosha Garments to
manufacture Hosa branded indoor sportswear products and the
amount of procurement fees paid/payable to Haosha Garments was
within the approved annual cap of RMB4.5 million (excluding value
added tax).
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(b)

Processing Agreement with Haosha Garments

In light of the fact that Haosha Industry lacks the in-house facilities
for dyeing and printing its procured fabric products, Haosha
Industry entered into a processing agreement with Haosha
Garments on 7 June 2011, pursuant to which Haosha Garments
agreed to provide dyeing and printing services to Haosha Industry
from time to time on commercial terms. The processing agreement
is for a term from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013 renewable
for a further period of three years at the option of Haosha Industry
subject to compliance with applicable requirements of the Listing
Rules. Haosha Industry has the right to terminate the processing
agreement at any time before expiration subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules.

In order to continue the relevant transactions with Haosha
Garments after 31 December 2013, Haosha Industry entered into
a new processing agreement (“New Processing Agreement”)
with Haosha Garments on 19 December 2013, whereby Haosha
Industry agreed to purchase from Haosha Garments, and Haosha
Garments agreed to supply to Haosha Industry, dyeing and printing
services from time to time. The New Processing Agreement is for
a term of three years, from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016,
and is renewable for another three year at the option of Haosha
Industry subject to compliance with applicable requirements of
Listing Rules. The annual caps for the transactions under the
New Processing Agreement for each of the three years ending
31 December 2016 are RMB50,000,000, RMB57,600,000 and
RMB62,400,000, as approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 8
May 2014. Further details of such transaction are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 19 December 2013 and
27 December 2013 and the circular of the Company dated 15 April
2014.

On 22 November 2016, Haosha Industry and Haosha Garment
entered into a new processing agreement for a term from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019. The processing agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder were approved by
the independent shareholders on 29 December 2016. For details
of the processing agreement, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 22 November 2016 and the circular dated 2
December 2016.
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Report of the Directors

Haosha Garments has been the processing service provider of the
Group and the Group expects itself to continue using processing
services provided by Haosha Garments in view of their long-term
business relationship, which enables Haosha Garments to respond
to the order requests of the Group in a more prompt and accurate
manner compared with other independent suppliers of similar
services available in the market, as well as the proximity between
Haosha Garments and Haosha Industry, which helps reduce
the transportation costs. The prices at which Haosha Garments
provides processing services to the Group are based on terms that
are comparable to those offered by independent suppliers of similar
services, on arm’s length negotiation and on normal commercial
terms.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group incurred
RMB51.22 million for the processing services provided by Haosha
Garments and the amount of processing fees paid/payable to
Haosha Garments was within the approved annual cap of RMB62.4
million (excluding value added tax).

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above-
mentioned continuing connected transactions between the Group and
Haosha Garments, and confirmed that such transactions were entered
into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms and on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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Report of the Directors

EETHRE

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s
auditors have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange. The auditors’ letter confirms that, in
respect of the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions:

a. nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company's board of
directors.

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group.

C. nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to the
auditors’ attention that causes the auditors to believe that the
above-mentioned continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTIES

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules in respect of the above continuing connected transactions. Save as
disclosed, significant related party transactions which do not constitute
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules in the year are disclosed in Note 26 of the financial
statements prepared under the International Financial Reporting
Standards.
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Report of the Directors

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance had been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided to
the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined in the
Prospectus). The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under
the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with by the controlling
shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business, apart from
the Group's business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to and including
the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contacts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands where the Company
is incorporated applicable to the Company.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit, qualifications
and competence of individual employees and are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes to motivate and
reward its Directors and eligible employees. Details of these schemes
are set out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes"” above and
note 20 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EETHRE

PENSION SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution mandatory provident fund
scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for eligible employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated income statements as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in China are
required to participate in defined contribution central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal government. The subsidiaries of the
Group are required to contribute certain percentages of its payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated income statements as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension
benefits beyond the annual contributions described above.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest
customers accounted for 15.0% (2015: 15.6%) and 51.9% (2015: 48.9%),
respectively, of the Group's total revenue.

During the year, aggregate purchases from the Group's largest and five
largest suppliers accounted for 18.8% (2015: 13.6%) and 43.1% (2015:
36.1%), respectively, of the Group's total purchases from suppliers.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Haosha Garments was one of
the five largest suppliers of the Group. Haosha Garments is owned as to
75% by Mr. Shi Hongliu and 25% by Mr. Shi Hongyan, respectively, who
are executive directors of the Company. Apart from Haosha Garments,
at no time during the year ended 31 December 2016, did a Director, his/
her associate(s) or a Shareholder, which to the knowledge of the Director
owns more than 5% of the Company's share capital, have an interest in
any other of the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

AUDITORS

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the AGM.
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Report of the Directors

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs,
losses and damages which he/she may sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/her duty,
or supposed duty, in his/her office, provided that the indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to him/her.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken against
Directors arising out of corporate activities throughout the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not less than 25%
of the Company's issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

BANK LOANS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has outstanding bank loans of
RMB320,632,000, which carried interest rate of 1.01% — 5.22%. The
amount of interest capitalised during the year ended 31 December 2016
was nil.

On behalf of the Board
Shi Hongliu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
8 M A2 B R R &

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Hosa International Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hosa
International Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 98 to 163, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code") together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
8 M 2 B R R S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition: Distributor arrangements

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policy 1(r) on page 115.
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Revenue mainly comprises sales of Our audit procedures to assess

swimwear, fitness wear and sports the recognition of revenue from

underwear to distributors. distributor arrangements included
the following:

The Group enters into a framework e
distribution agreement with each

inspecting agreements with
distributors, on a sample basis,

distributor on a biennial basis and,
according to the terms of the
distribution agreements, products
are manufactured based on
purchase orders received and then
delivered to the location designated
by the distributor, at which point
the risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods are considered to have
been transferred to the distributor
and revenue is recognised.

During trade fairs held by the Group
during the year, the distributors
reach general purchase agreements
with the Group, which indicate the
amounts and quantity of goods to
be ordered in the coming months.
Adjustments to orders are allowed
to be placed within the agreed time
period.

to understand the terms of the
sale transactions, including the
terms of delivery and any sales
return arrangements, to assess
the Group's revenue recognition
criteria with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

comparing the revenue from
distributors recorded by the
Group during the year with
the orders received from
distributors during the year;
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

B 2B RS

We identified the recognition e
of revenue from distributor
arrangements as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the
key performance indicators of the
Group and therefore there is an
inherent risk of manipulation of the
timing of recognition of revenue
by management to meet specific
targets or expectations.
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assessing, on a sample basis,
whether specific revenue
transactions around the financial
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in the appropriate financial
period on the basis of the
terms of sale as set out in the
distribution agreements by
comparing the details in the
relevant sales invoices with
acceptance documents signed
by the distributors;

scrutinising the sales ledger after
the year end to identify sales
returns and inspecting relevant
underlying documentation to
assess if the related adjustments
to revenue had been accounted
for in the appropriate financial
period; and

scrutinising all the sales journals
raised during the reporting
period and comparing details
of a sample of these journals,
which met certain risk-based
criteria, with relevant underlying
documentation.
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Recoverability of trade receivables

Independent Auditor’'s Report

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policy 1(i)(i) on page 106 and page 107.

The Key Audit Matter

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s
gross trade receivables totalled
RMB355 million, against which no
provision for doubtful debts was
recorded.

Management assesses the need
for provisions for doubtful debts
based of the expected credit losses
to be incurred, which is estimated
by taking into account the ageing
of overdue balances, repayment
history of the Group’s individual
distributors and current market and
distributor-specific conditions, all of
which involve a significant degree
of management judgement.

We identified assessing the
recoverability of trade receivables as
a key audit matter because of the
inherent uncertainty in assessing if
trade receivables will be recovered
in full and because current market
conditions are unpredictable and
the assessment of the provisions
for doubtful debts requires the
exercise of significant management
judgement.

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
recoverability of trade receivables
included the following:

e obtaining an understanding
of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of management'’s
key internal controls relating to
credit control, debt collection
and making provisions for
doubtful debts;

e assessing whether items were
correctly categorised in the
trade receivables ageing report
by comparing a sample of
individual items with underlying
sales invoices;
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obtaining an understanding of
the basis of management’s
judgements about the
recoverability of individual
material and all overdue trade
receivable balances with
reference to the ageing of
overdue balances and historical
and post year end payment
records;

assessing the historical
accuracy of the estimates
made by management for the
provisions for doubtful debts
by comparing the provisions
made by management as at 31
December 2015 with the actual
new provisions and recoveries
in respect of trade receivables
as at 31 December 2015 during
the current year; and

inspecting, on a sample basis,
cash receipts from distributors
subsequent to the financial year
end relating to trade receivable
balances at 31 December 2016.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
|IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
18 M % BLRD 3

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

U Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Tsang Fai.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & £2016%12/831H IFFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 & 28R4 - A A REEF|R)

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
KiaE AR¥FT ARETFT
Revenue =E 2 3 1,103,540 1,178,001
Cost of sales SHERM A 3 (536,213) (573,413)
Gross profit EF 567,327 604,588
Other revenue EaugA 4 57,850 61,830
Other net income/(loss) HiFU A (E518) 4 1,193 (526)
Selling and distribution expenses FHEE M Atk AR (185,689) (206,770)
Administrative and other TR R E LR
operating expenses (109,198) (119,228)
Profit from operations KT 331,483 339,894
Finance costs ZUR A #N 5(a) (4,307) (1,002)
Profit before taxation R A1 R 327,176 338,892
Income tax PS5t 6 (58,339) (71,617)
Profit for the year attributable to equity 7~%2 T4 %5 IR 3R FE4S S E RIE
shareholders of the Company 268,837 267,275
Other comprehensive income for the year & E Hfth4R & Wz
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently FJAERE B EHFHEEIEL
to profit or loss: ZIER :
Exchange differences on translation of HE R IR N B
financial statements of operations NE| ISR
outside the mainland China KM R =R (14,319) (2,433)
Total comprehensive income for the year 2 A T R RELEE
attributable to equity shareholders of SEelFEEEE
the Company 254,518 264,842
Earnings per share (RMB) BEREBF(AR®T)
— Basic —EK 9 0.16 0.16
— Diluted — 8 0.16 0.16
The notes on pages 102 to 163 form part of these financial statements. F 1022 163 B W M 3T 18 Ak 2N BA 75 5 55 H9 — 2B

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company D o FEANA B REZRAR R B ARG E A
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 22(b). SEEE M EE22(b) ©



As at 31 December 2016 72016512 A31H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f& 3 & $gBA 4k -

BIAARKESIR)

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
KiaE AR¥FT AREFT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMKRE 10 85,299 79,939
Lease prepayments TEES 11 17,319 17,734
Intangible assets EREE 12 513 769
Deferred tax assets IEERIBEE 21(b) 3,021 3,966
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 106,152 102,408
Current assets REEE
Inventories w8 14 220,255 259,079
Trade and other receivables H 5 R EA WK 15 421,547 344,034
Pledged deposits EERER 16 255,959 174,916
Fixed deposits held at banks with BB R B = A A RITEH
maturity over three months R 17(a) 1,364,266 1,281,500
Cash and cash equivalents BeMKREZEEY 17(a) 88,796 21,000
Total current assets REBEEHE 2,350,823 2,080,529
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables Z 5 R E MR 18 236,028 320,886
Bank loans RITER 19 320,632 129,739
Current taxation BNERR I 21(a) 33,346 10,768
Total current liabilities REEEALE 590,006 461,393
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,760,817 1,619,136
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 1,866,969 1,721,544
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEAE 21(b) 10,782 10,782
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEAE 10,782 10,782
Net assets BEEFE 1,856,187 1,710,762
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital kN 22(c) 13,567 13,494
Reserves G 22(d) 1,842,620 1,697,268
Total equity e 1,856,187 1,710,762

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 March

2017.

Shi Hongliu

T
Director

EE

The notes on pages 102 to 163 form part of these financial statements.

REFEN2017E3A21 B E RT3 o

Shi Hongyan
BIIE\

e

Director

EF

£102E 163 B A KT E B A A B 75 $R 3% 1) — BB
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B EREER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & £2016%12/831H IFFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& S BB - YA AREF]R)

Capital Share-based
Share Share  redemption Capital Statutory Exchange Other  compensation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
NRAAEE
& KiEE EAREGE ERRE EERE EXGE Rt NEREE BEFE @
(note 22(c))  (note 22(d)fi)  (note22(d)fi)  (note 22(alii)  (note 22(cliil)  (note 22(div))  (note 22(c)v))  (note 22(c)fvi))
(Wzzzw)  (Wetzaun)  (Wz2aem)  (Bzzzen)  (Bzzein) - (Ra22el)  (F22m)  (Fz2226060)
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
Wi AREFr  AREFr  ARETT  AREFr  AREFr  ARETT  ARETr ARETT AREFrT ARETL
Balance at 1 January 2015 R015E1B1RER 13,465 132,808 26 60 67,465 6,330) 91,132 7495 1,335,025 1,641,146
Changes in equity for 2015: 155 EHET
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - = = 267,275 267,275
Other comprehensive income KAk - - - - - (2433) - - - 2,433)
Total comprehensive income FRlREE - - - - - (2433 - - 267275 264,842
Appropriation to statutory reserves  EAEE e 2(d)fi) = - - - 2107 - - - 2,10) -
Shares issued on exercise of share 1T BEREZERTRA
options 22(c)lil 32 6,081 - - = = = (1,986) = 4121
Dividends approved in respectof  RAEEHEHRE
current year 22(b) - (116,364) - - - - - - (82,091) (198,455)
Purchase of own shares BERFRG
— Par value paid -EfEE & - - - - = = = = B
— Premium paid -EffRE - (895) - - - - - - - (895)
— Transfer between reserves i - &] 3 = = = = = = =
Balance at 31 December 2015 R015E12B31AER 1349% 21,627 29 60 69,572 (8,763) 91,132 5,509 1,618,102 1,710,762
Balance at 1 January 2016 R2016F1A1AMELE 13,494 21,621 29 60 69,572 (8,763) 91,132 5,509 1,518,102 1,710,762
Changes in equity for 2016: N165EEEE
Profit for the year EEEF - - - - - - - - 268,837 268,837
Other comprehensive income Ehiiala - - - - - (14,319) - - - (14319)
Total comprehensive income alies - - - - - (14,319) - - 268,837 254,518
Equity-settled share-based payments WERZENKAZH  22dvi - = = = = = = (800) = (800)
Shares issued on exercise of share 7RI BT
options 22(clfii i 13,764 - - - = = (4530) o 9,307
Dividends approved in respectof ~ HAEEHENRE
current year 20 - (21,627) - - - - - - (95,973) (117,600)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R2016512A31 RS 13,567 13,764 29 60 69,572 (23,082) 91,132 179 1,690,966 1,856,187
The notes on pages 102 to 163 form part of these financial statements. F1022 163 B MM s 18K 4B 5 7 2= A9 — 2B
pyaN
2o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
A\ [3f LB E
SHIREERER
For the year ended 31 December 2016 & £2016%12A31H IFFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 3B AN - HIUAARES]R)

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HisE ARKTFT ARETFT
Operating activities KEEH
Cash generated from operations KBRS S 17(b) 116,534 306,478
Income tax paid B FTER (34,816) (72,969)
Net cash generated from RETEMSRESTFE
operating activities 81,718 233,509
Investing activities REEE
Payment for purchase of property, BEYE  BEMRENR
plant and equipment (8,097) (6,210)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets &\ EENK (149) (622)
Interest received B YERFI B 41,519 40,095
Increase in pledged deposits B E TR N (81,043) (169,084)
Placement of time deposits with GFARZBBABBE=BEARAZTE
original maturity over three months HATER (1,364,266) (1,281,500)
Maturity of time deposits with REERBB=1EA 2 E8F
original maturity over three months E|EREE 1,281,500 1,222,298
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEFARES TR (130,536) (185,023)
Financing activities BESEE
Proceeds from bank loans IRITE RS RIA 310,489 129,606
Repayments of bank loans RITERER (132,076) =
Proceeds from loan from the immediate BRI RERATS A
controlling shareholder 52,396 -
Proceeds from shares issued under share  1RIFEERRAEST2IZEITAR (D FR 1S
option scheme IE 22(c)(ii) 9,307 4,127
Payment for repurchase of shares 1% 53 B [B1 1< 3% = (898)
Interest paid BRFLE (4,323) (892)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of BERARAERRERAAR S
the Company (119,179) (196,868)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEFEHE (A BREFHE
financing activities 116,614 (64,925)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeRBESEEY
cash equivalents ®h,CRd)FE 67,796 (16,439)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January A1B1EMWELRREZEY 21,000 37,439
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 R12A3MBNEESRESEE
December L) 17(a) 88,796 21,000
The notes on pages 102 to 163 form part of these financial statements. £102E 163 B A M ST A A BF 75 Tk B9 — 36

e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By 355 ¥R 3= I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=EHEBAIN

1

BIAARKESIR)

Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
2 September 2010. The shares of the Company have been
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 16 December 2011.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations issued by International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong Dollars
(“HK$"). These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) as the functional currency of the Group’s
operating subsidiaries is RMB. These consolidated financial
statements presented in RMB have been rounded to the nearest
thousand.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By 355 R 2= M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(]

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting standards

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

o Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation

° Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

. Amendments to IAS 1, Disclosure initiative

None of these developments have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group has
not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By 355 ¥R 3= I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=EHEBAIN

1

BIAARKESIR)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

1(i)).
Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads
and borrowing costs (see note 1(t)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By 355 R 2= M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

o Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 20 years after
the date of completion.

o Machinery and equipment 5—10 years
° Motor vehicles 2 — 4 years
o Furniture and fixtures 3 -5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent software and are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimate useful lives. Software are amortised from the date they
are available for use over a period of three years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use rights paid to the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") governmental authorities.
Land use rights are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 1(i)). Amortisation is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the respective periods
of the rights.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEAI  BUARKEIIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss
in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease terms, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

(i) Impairment of assets
(i)  Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency

in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By 355 R 2= M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

()  Impairment of trade and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other current receivables carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By 355 ¥R 3= I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEAI  BUARKEIIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;

J lease prepayments;

. intangible assets; and

o investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By 355 R 2= M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets to
the cash-generating unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rule Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of
the financial year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 1(i)(i) and (ii)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=EHEBAIN

1

BIAARKESIR)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

)

(k)

0]

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period when the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(i)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By 355 R 2= M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Trade and other payables

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred, except to the extent that they
are included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised
as an expense.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as employee cost with a corresponding
increase in the share-based compensation reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at the grant date using
the binomial lattice model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=EHEBAIN

1

BIAARKESIR)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits (continued)
(i)  Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company's shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT K%

1

BEREHEERGE

(o)

(p)

BEREA(E)
(i) KRG BEE I (E)

REBHRASTRRS TR
[ H B A B B ETT RS -
HAGFEERNRFT A
EBEMNEAHEE  RDETR
AR EEERERAGA
ks - WRE AR FEAER
FERE - BIFRBREMX
BERBRREE - NRB
BH - RS EEA
THE ARREERELEH
BRBERERE (LREXR
FERAFRERAE) - M
REAREEEREANR AR
B BE A 53 8 R T 28 2L
BORWRIBRSN - B B ER
MONBEARHBEAER - B
EEHNBERECETE
(EREARMDGER)HE
Mg Em (R B R R
EREME) QL -

Frig®t

FEMEHEREANEHIEMELT
HMIRAERBENES - BB
HREERAEERAENEE
BERERER - N EER M
FAREREE N RSP RERN
HEARM  AERBAT - B
MRS IR EMARA Wk
BEERNERDHER

BB E I F E EER B U s 1O T8
HIENRE  KARKSHRE
MO EECDEMHBETE -
LAR Gh 3B F 2 RN BRI R &Y
EHRE -

BEEHRBEEERBED BEAMN
iR R E S IEERPTEE -
BRUEZRNEERBERMB
HEMSORAEEERERE
ZEMER - RERBEENE
FAREAHIRER I RS AHEA
HRmEL -



Notes to the Financial Statements

By 355 R 2= M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=EHEBAIN

1

BIAARKESIR)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(q)

Income tax (continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

° in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

° in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By 355 R 2= M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q)

(r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iiij) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=EHEBAIN

1

BIAARKESIR)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

(t

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside the mainland China are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.
Related parties
(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:
(@  has control or joint control over the Group;

(b)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Related parties (continued)

(ii)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(@  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(b)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(c)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(d)  One entity is a joint venture of a third party and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(e)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(f)  The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(@ A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(h)  The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=EHEBAIN

1

BIAARKESIR)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(v) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business.

Accounting judgement and estimates

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other
uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity
of reported results to changes in condition and assumptions are
factors to be considered when reviewing the financial statements.
The principal accounting policies are set forth in note 1. The Group
believes the following critical accounting policies involve the most
significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of the
financial statements.

(@) Impairments

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may
not be recoverable, the asset may be considered “impaired”,
and an impairment loss may be recognised in profit or loss. The
carrying amounts of assets are reviewed periodically in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In determining the value in
use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of sales volume, sales revenue and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of sales volume,
sales revenue and amount of operating costs.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2  Accounting judgement and estimates (continued)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
These estimates are based on the current market conditions and
the historical experience of selling products with similar nature.
Any change in the assumptions would increase or decrease the
amount of inventories write-down or the related reversals of
write-down made in prior years and affect the Group’s net assets
value. The Group reassesses these estimates at the end of the
reporting period.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for trade and
other receivables by assessing the recoverability based on credit
history and prevailing market conditions. This requires the use
of estimates and judgements. Allowances are applied to trade
and other receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables and thus the impairment loss in the period in which
such estimate is changed. The Group reassesses the impairment
allowances at the end of the reporting period.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. Intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised on straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives. The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation and amortisation expenses to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group’s historical experience with similar assets and taking into
account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
and amortisation expenses for future periods are adjusted
prospectively if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHEAI  BUARKEIIR)

Revenue and segment reporting

The principal activities of the Group are design, manufacture and
wholesale of swimwear, fitness wear and sports underwear.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold less returns,
discounts and value added tax.

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business
segments. The primary format, business segments, is based on
the Group’s management and internal reporting structure. No
geographical segment analysis is presented as substantially all assets,
liabilities, revenue and gross profit of the Group are attributable to the
operation in the PRC.

In 2016, the Group has four separate segments as follows:
- Design, manufacture and wholesale of swimwear under the
brand name of “Hosa” (“Swimwear-Hosa");

- Design, manufacture and wholesale of swimwear under the
brand name of “Water Cube” (”Swimwear-Water Cube");

- Design, manufacture and wholesale of fitness wear under the

brand name of “Hosa"” (“Fitness wear-Hosa"); and

- Design, manufacture and wholesale of sports underwear under
the brand name of “Hosa” (“Sports underwear- Hosa").
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is set out below:

(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

3 HBERERIBEEE

AEBSERITHREEBIREADE
F2016F K2015F12 831 HIEFEED
RERRFEDHREMBBAEREEA
RO ERER ST

Sports
Swimwear Swimwear  Fitness wear  underwear -
-Hosa -Water Cube -Hosa Hosa Total
IKEE KEE @REBM EFEFBHRK
—%D —KkIF — D — D et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE2016F 12318 LFE
Revenue 2EH 422,819 140,295 441,526 98,900 1,103,540
Cost of sales HERA (198,866) (83,524) (193,994) (59,829) (536,213)
Gross profit 7 223,953 56,771 247,532 39,071 567,327
Year ended 31 December 2015 BZ20155 12831 LEE
Revenue BEE 395,785 151,994 437,076 193,146 1,178,001
Cost of sales HENA (179,311) (88,493) (187,372) (118,237) (573413)
Gross profit EH 216,474 63,501 249,704 74,909 604,588

The Group's revenue by geographical locations is determined by the
destination where the goods are delivered.

REBIZWIEAE B H) & ERTIAE
a3 B MR RE o

Year ended 31 December

BZ1RAMBLEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AERHTFTT AERBFT
Domestic A 1,021,928 1,117,083
Overseas RSN 81,612 60,918
1,103,540 1,178,001

The Group has three customers (2015: one customer) with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The amount of sales to these customers
amounted to approximately RMB408,400,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: RMB183,217,000).

HZE2016F12A31BIEFE - A"EHE
HB=FEF(2015F : —ZRFINXS
BAAREELETEN10% - B ZE20165F
12B318EFE - REZERFHHE
4 A AR #408,400,0007T (20154 -
AR#183,217,0007T) °



(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmBHERAIN GUARBIIR)

4 Other revenue and other net income/(loss) 4 HaWARHMBWRA (&
#B)
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR®FT
Other revenue Hibr A
Interest income — financial institutions FEUA — & BhtkE 40,900 36,633
Government grants BT RG 12,578 24,418
Written back of long-aged liabilities REBEERMN & EE0 3,482 =
Others EHA 890 779
57,850 61,830
Other net income/(loss) HMER A (E8)
Exchange gain/(loss) P 5 Ueas(518) 1,567 (519)
Loss on disposal of raw materials HERMEHEE (295) -
Others HAith (79) (7)
1,193 (526)
Government grants of the Group were unconditional and were =B TR A EIE - Bk

therefore recognised as income when received. ENRSFEZ AU A o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

B A A

BB AT MBI, (GEA) A T & IE
‘&S0

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31B8LLEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
(@) Finance costs: (a) BIFERAS :
Interest on bank loans IRITIEFF 2 4,307 1,002
(b) Staff costs: (b) BIMA:
Contributions to defined contribution AEHFCRIRETEIHER
retirement plans (note 23) (H17%23) 1,995 1,795
Equity-settled share-based payment AR S E AR S+
expenses (note 20) F (#15E20) 179 -
Equity-settled share-based payment VAREZS 45 E ARG D S 15
expenses reversal (note 20) F 2 8Bl (Hf7220) (979) -
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREAME 94,907 98,112
96,102 99,907
(c) Otheritems: (0 HfhEA:
Amortisation of intangible assets B AERENESBE
and lease prepayments 820 790
Auditors’ remuneration FETR NS 2,702 2,550
Depreciation e 9,028 9,617
Operating lease charges in respect BEMENCEEEL
of properties 6,374 6,666
Research and development costs RSB (BTa2(3))
(note (1)) 63,073 73,443
Cost of inventories (note (ii) FERAR(Ha#)) 536,213 573,413
Notes: Hiat

(ii)

Research and development costs for the year ended 31 December 2016
include staff costs of employees in the design, research and development
department of RMB13,064,000 (2015: RMB13,225,000), which are also

included in the staff costs as disclosed in note 5(b).

Cost of inventories for the year ended 31 December 2016 includes
RMB54,080,000 (2015: RMB57,533,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation
and amortisation expenses, which amount is included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above in notes 5(b) and (c) for each of these

types of expenses.

(i) HZE2016%12 8318 L EE MK
REESTRAEBREENE TRAN
AR 13,064,0007C (20154 : AR
13,225,0007T) + INE & AR EE5(0) #
TERB TR -

(ii) HE2016F 12 A31 A L FERFERA
BIEARES54,080,0007T(2015%F : AR
#57,533,0007T) * JyEE TAA - HTE
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(BRmBHERAIN GUARBIIR)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income represents:

afEERAEMESRERT

B EH

(a) AHHESERAEMKRESRERTH

IR ¢

Year ended 31 December

BE12A3MBLEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AEHFT
Current tax — PRC income tax BUEAT I8 — B FriSH
Provision for the year FERE 46,094 49,576
PRC dividend withholding tax (iv) AR AR B TR (V) 11,300 19,000
Deferred tax ELEBIE
Origination and reversal of temporary BT R 2 58 K 22 A FN#E (o)
differences (note 21(b)) (Hia£21(b)) 945 (544)
Provision of dividends withholding tax & & TEHH B4 = 3,585
58,339 71,617

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

at applicable tax rates:

(b) BEMAXERZEABRRAENS

SRR AR

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETIT
Profit before taxation R 55 71T 1 R 327,176 338,892
Notional tax on profit before taxation,  JZ@EBA RS IS AR R A
calculated at the statutory tax rates ER R E AR AT FE
applicable to the respective tax EOEZE-3 =)
jurisdictions (i) 85,117 85,550
Tax effect of PRC preferential tax BRSBTS
treatments (i) =Z=4(])] (40,643) (38,337)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses S EJH1H: 5 S ORI TS o7 22 2,565 1,819
Withholding tax on profit retained by ~ FEIF/E A TR E FEEY
PRC subsidiaries (i) TEHAEL (i) 11,300 22,585
Actual tax expense BEERBIERY 58,339 71,617
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
at applicable tax rates:(continued)

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group did
not earn any assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

(if) According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") Law that took
effect on 1 January 2008, the statutory income tax rate of the Group's
subsidiaries in mainland China Haosha Industry (Fujian) Co., Ltd.
(“Haosha Industry”) and Haosha Industry (Datian) Co., Ltd. (“Haosha
Industry (Datian)”) is 25%.

In accordance with the CIT Law, its implementation rules and the
relevant regulations, Haosha Industry was granted the High and New
Technology Enterprise Status (“HNTE") in 2013 for a valid period of 3
years from 2013 to 2015 which entitles Haosha Industry to a reduced
income tax rate at 15% during the valid periods under the CIT Law
and its relevant regulations. Haosha Industry successfully renewed
the HNTE qualification on 1 December 2016 and continues to enjoy
a preferential income tax rate of 15% for another three years from
2016 to 2018.

(iii) According to PRC CIT Law and its implementation rules, dividends
receivable by non-PRC corporate residents from PRC enterprises which
are earned since 1 January 2008 are subject to withholding tax at a
rate of 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or arrangements. Under
the Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement, a qualified Hong Kong
tax resident will be liable for withholding tax at the rate of 5% for
dividend income derived from the PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident is
the “beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity interests
of the PRC Company.

As at the date of the annual report, the Group had not yet obtained
the certificates of Hong Kong tax residents from the Inland Revenue
Department of Hong Kong. Therefore, the Group is applicable to the
withholding tax rate of 10%.

The Directors of the Group have determined that in determining
the amounts of dividends to be distributed from PRC subsidiaries
to the Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary in future, the amounts
of dividends declared or to be declared by the Company would
be considered. As at 31 December 2016, the Directors of the
Group determined that the estimated dividends to be distributed
will not be greater than RMB107,820,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB107,820,000) in the foreseeable future.
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BIECEMBRERELBEE
B OEDEERBRANE
B RERE15% < EDBEER
2016 F 12 A 1B EF S
T B » #2016F E20184F
iiﬁﬂ%ﬁéﬁ%?ﬁw%m@%ﬁ

(i)  BEBEPECEMSREREER
&0 - SEPEGEERATEM
HPEWAL B AR E2008F1A1H
B84 BRER A F B A9 10% B R B4R
BB - RIEER IS EL L HE
WRRIBHISN o Lo - RIBEP
BEEBHBRYE  W—%E%
BEAREERATHARMN&E
wHEAAN] - WEFA25%A £
fiiE - ZEBERBEERATE
EEHIRR S B ZBIR5 % B R 41
RIEFL -

RAFEHRA - AEBENREEH
MERESEEREERER -
At - AEEEANRSTENR
HEA10% °

AEBESIERTE AR RUERBR
AN B AR DB E BB ML
M B AR MRF S EE &
ARBEEEMBEE SHRF
Be—RZEE - ®2016F 124
318 - A EEEBHEANE
BB REESETBBARE
107,820,0007T (20155 « AR¥
107,820,0007T ) B AR »
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(BRmBHERAIN GUARBIIR)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
at applicable tax rates:(continued)

(iv) PRC dividend withholding tax represents tax charged by the PRC tax
authority on dividends distributed by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
during the year.

7 Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as
follows:

Year ended 31 December 2016

Salaries,
allowances

and

benefits
Fee in kind

#e

R

iz REWEN
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTL ARETR

afEERAEMESRERT
K RSB (&

(b) BIEMXEZREABERIENS
FHRUEHAR © (F)

(v)  PERRSTAMBEN A BB
P9 3h A &= [ O o B Y /BB 8 R 4F
MFTEUIRE IR o

EEHM
ERHI YIRS E S A FEHIS38301)

ERA R (RBE FFEER) RDIE2
AR T B

BZ2016F12A31ALFE
Contributions
to retirement
benefit  Share-based Discretionary
scheme payments (Vi) bonuses Total
EHER DRGA
SRR EENAR Bfgiea act

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AERFR AEETR ARETL ARETZ

Executive Directors HiTES

Mr. Shi Hongliu iy - 962 4 - - 966
Mr. Shi Hongyan i it - 842 4 - - 846
Mr. Shi Zhixiong (ii) TSR T ) - 604 4 - = 608
Mr. Lui Wai Ming (v) ERHEHY - 1,195 12 179 = 1,386
Sub-total INEF - 3,603 24 179 - 3,806
Independent Non-executive Directors B 3EH{TES

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan R - 250 - - - 250
Mr. He Wenyi (ii) ] 30 2 £ (i) - 180 - - - 180
Mr. Yao Ge phxFE - 180 - - - 180
Sub-total N - 610 - - - 610
Total &5t - 4213 2% 179 - 4,416
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(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

7 EEHME

Year ended 31 December 2015 HZ2015F12A8318 L EE
Salaries,
allowances  Contributions
and  to retirement
benefits benefit ~ Share-based  Discretionary
Fee inkind scheme payments bonuses Total
Hé - 20 RIER AR (D &
we  REMEH SHEMER EEMARG) mETEa Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARET
Executive Directors HTESE
Mr. Shi Hongliu HEERTE - 961 4 - = 965
Mr. Shi Hongyan T & - 841 4 - - 845
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong (i L OEE ) = 250 2 - = 252
Mr. Zhao Yan (i) HIALE) - 578 25 - - 603
Mr. Shi Zhixiong ikl ¥t - 50 - - = 50
Sub-total et - 2,680 35 - - 2,715
Independent Non-executive Directors  BiFHTES
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan B e - 250 - - = 250
Mr. He Wenyi WXERE - 15 = = = 15
Mr. Wang Yao (iv) TR%%Ew - 165 - - = 165
Mr. Yao Ge ks - 180 - - - 180
Sub-total et - 610 - - - 610
Total &3t - 3,290 35 - - 3325
Notes: Wit -
(i) Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong was ceased to be an executive director on 26 May 2015. @) g;fﬁﬁiﬁézm 5%5H26 BBHERTT
(ii) Mr. Zhao Yan was ceased to be an executive director on 1 December 2015. (i) g*ﬁ%iﬁ’ﬁm SE12R1HEERITE
(iiiy ~ Mr. Shi Zhixiong and Mr. He Wenyi were appointed as executive director and (i) Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁi&ﬁﬁ/%?ﬁiﬁ@gﬁi@ﬂ
independent non-executive director respectively on 1 December 2015. 1$E| DRERERTEERBELINTE
(iv)  Mr. Wang Yao was ceased to be an independent non-executive director on 1 (iv)  EREER2015F12 A1 BEHEBLIE

(vi)

December 2015.

Mr. Lui Wai Ming was appointed as executive director on 1 April 2016.

These payments represent the estimated value of share options granted to
the directors under the company’s share option scheme. The value of these
share options is measured according to the group’s accounting policies for
share-based payment transactions as set out in note 1(o)(ii).

(vi)

HITESR -

BEMBEEN20165F4 A1 BEZERA
TES -

BN RREAR A BRETERT
EEMBEBEGEE  SLBRED
BB ARIRANPA ZE1 (0)(ii) P51 MY AR SR [ IA
Bin REENRZ Z @A BRMATE
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Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share option
scheme” in the directors’ report and note 20.

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, no amount was
paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any of the five
highest paid individuals set out in note 8 as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Individual with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2015: three)
are directors whose remuneration are disclosed in note 7. Emoluments
in respect of the remaining one individual (2015: two) are as follows:

EEFHM(E

BEEENNFE - BERENEERR
KRS E  BEEFRERME20
MR 8l — BRI -

HE2015F %2016 12 A31 B L4
B AEEBES N ENESSME
SHIM AL &= A LERFKIE -
{E 72 DN BE 7 £ (B ok fn R 7K 42 [ B 1) 42 8D
& WREABEREE -

ReEHHMAL
A& A LA - HH (20154 -
=R)REE  FENTHIRE 7R
= o % N —R (20155 : MB) AR
[ N

Year ended 31 December

BZNRAMMBLEE
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETF T AE#F T
Salaries and other emoluments e K EH Ath 3B 489 1,059
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET IR 15 30
504 1,089

The emoluments of the one individual (2015: two) with the highest
emoluments are within the following band:

H— (20155 | MR BEHHAL
PR T T3IBE -

Year ended 31 December

BZ1R2AMBLEE
2016 2015
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A2
HK$500,001 to 1,000,000 500,001% 1,000,000/ 7T 1 2
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9 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB268,837,000 (2015: RMB267,275,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,660,301,000 ordinary shares (2015:
1,657,298,000) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

(BR=BHEAIN

BIAANREFIR)

9 BREFN

(a)

BREFRF

EREAENBRBEAQR L
BESREERGAHNBARE
268,837,000 T (20154 : AR
267,275,00070) M FRNE ETE
A% hN#E F 15 201,660,301,000 4%
(20154 : 1,657,298,000 % ) =t

sty

Weighted average number of ordinary shares BB INEF T E
2016 2015
‘000 ‘000
T T
Ordinary shares at 1 January 1 ATHr T @A 1,658,881 1,655,212
Effect of shares repurchased BRIRMNHOTE - (117)
Effect of share options exercised TEERENTE 1,420 2,203
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 831 B &)@
shares at 31 December INREFE I8 1,660,301 1,657,298
(b) BREFER

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB268,837,000 (2015: RMB267,275,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,665,025,000 shares (2015: 1,665,586,000), calculated as
follows:

ERBERAMDBEARAQR L
BEZRIAEGIBEBARRE
268,837,0007C (20154 : AR
267,275,0007T ) N & 3@ A% hn 4
¥ #11,665,025,000 4% (20154 :
1,665,586,0000% )5t & 0T :

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) HBERNEFIH(HE)
2016 2015
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 831 B &)@
shares at 31 December IRET9 8K 1,660,301 1,657,298
Effect of deemed issue of shares under  1B{E AN A T3 AZIEET 2
the Company's share option scheme BEHERIEEITRG
for nil consideration (note 20) VR B ([1it20) 4,724 8,288
Weighted average number of ordinary 12 531 HH) @A
shares (diluted) at 31 December InAE Yy g (s ) 1,665,025 1,665,586

HOSA International Limited ;& ¢ EBEHER AT
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(BR=EHEAI  BUARKEIIR)

10 Property, plant and equipment 10 % BMERRE
Furniture,
Plant and fixturesand ~ Leasehold Construction
Buildings  machinery Motor vehicles equipment improvement in progress Total
BT HEREE RE  GRREE HENEEE  £EIE @zt

RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB00  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB00
ARBTT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARMTT ARKTZ

Cost B
1 January 2015 M2015%1 818 29,330 32,157 8,416 8,206 8,762 32,605 119,476
Additions NE - 3,153 3 610 - 1,982 5,748
Transfer from constructionin -~ EEZ Ti2eEH

progress - - - - 205 (205) -
At 31 December 2015 120155128310 29,330 35,310 8,419 8,816 8,967 34,382 125,224
1 January 2016 M2016%1 818 29,330 35,310 8,419 8,816 8,967 34,382 125,224
Additions NE - 4,648 157 575 9% 8912 14,388
At 31 December 2016 20165128318 29,330 39,958 8,576 9,391 9,063 43,294 139,612

Accumulated depreciation  R3H7E :

1 January 2015 201561818 6,755 15,755 5716 4,504 2,938 = 35,668
Charge for the year FENE 1,694 2,803 832 1,508 2,780 = 9,617
At 31 December 2015 20158124318 8,449 18,558 6,548 6,012 5718 — 45,285
1 January 2016 #2016E1 A18 8,449 18,558 6,548 6,012 5718 - 45,285
Charge for the year EERE 1,694 3,204 812 1,458 1,860 = 9,028
At 31 December 2016 2016€12A318 10,143 21,762 7,360 7410 7578 - 54,313
Net book value: REFE:

At 31 December 2016 ®20165 124318 19,187 18,196 1,216 1,921 1,485 43,29 85,299
At 31 December 2015 M2015412 4318 20,831 16,752 1,871 2,804 3,249 34,382 79,939
All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group are located in REBFFAEYE  BEREEHUNRH
the PRC. Buildings are situated on leasehold land with lease term of c BFMATENPEMEE T E -
50 years in the PRC. EHEIA50F -
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(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

11 FENES

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT AR¥TFT
Cost: AR :
At 1 January R1ATH 19,304 19,304
Additions INE - -
At 31 December ®12A31H 19,304 19,304
Accumulated amortisation: STy
At 1 January M1A1R 1,570 1,155
Charge for the year FEHH 415 415
At 31 December M®12831H 1,985 1,570
Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 December ®12A31H 17,319 17,734

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s interests in leasehold land
are held on medium-term leases of 50 years in the PRC. As at 31
December 2016, the Group was in the process of obtaining the land
use right certificate in respect of a parcel of leasehold land in the PRC
with net book value of RMB6,669,000 (2015: RMB6,897,000).

R2016F 12 A31H  AEEEFEH
HELHNESARBEERSE A
HI504F - M 2016F 12 A31H » A%
BEIRIER—RBAEAPEMHEE SR
S ERAESE  EEBFEEA
R # 6,669,000 7T (2015 F : AR
6,897,0007T) ©

HOSA International Limited ;& ¢ EBEHER AT

131



Notes to the Financial Statements

By 355 ¥R 3= I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEBEI UARETTR)
12 Intangible assets 12 BREE
Software
B
RMB’000
AR MFor
Cost: AR :

At 1 January 2015 R2015F1H1H 1,274
Additions INE 622
At 31 December 2015 7201512 A31H 1,896
At 1 January 2016 201651 H18 1,896
Additions INE 149
At 31 December 2016 720165F12H31H 2,045

Accumulated amortisation: EtiEkey -
At 1 January 2015 7201551418 752
Charge for the year FEHEH 375
At 31 December 2015 7201512 H831H 1,127
At 1 January 2016 MR2016F1H1H 1,127
Charge for the year FEEE 405
At 31 December 2016 M2016%F12A31H 1,532

Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 December 2016 7A2016512H831H 513
At 31 December 2015 72015912 H31H 769

FEHEHBEACDAAGHEBERREME
BRERTR M EMEEFRSA -

The amortisation charge for the year is included in administrative and
other operating expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

(BR=BHEAIN

BIAANREFIR)

13 REBARNKRE

TY@%ZEIJEE%
EXRENHREA

Place of Particular of Proportion of
incorporation issued and ownership
Name of company and business paid up capital interest held by Principal activities
MR LK BRITR BEH
AREB R BEEARFE FrERERE R L f TEXK
the Company a subsidiary
AR —EHBLHE
Hosa Investment Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Us$1 100% - Investment holding
("Hosa Investment")
EDREZRARRR ABERES/ %71 100% - REER
(DEAERE]) BB
Hosa Group Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
("Hosa Group”)
EOEBERBRAR(DELEE ) 0 10,0007 7T - 100% #KEER
Haosha Industry* PRC RMB121,500,000 - 100% Design, manufacture and
sales of swimwear,
fitness wear, sports
underwear and swim and
indoor sports accessories
EPBE(BR)ERA FE ARE - 100% =Rat - SHEREHEKE
121,500,0007% g - Bami - EFR
KARKEREXES
Aot
* The English translation of the entity’s name is for reference only. The official * E%%/R AIEHENRNBREHNLE - %

name of the entity is in Chinese.

ERRMERBERP -

Inventories 14 EFE&
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a) EHUBERARNESAHLUTE
position comprise: BAEEK :
At 31 December
M12H831H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AERBFT
Raw materials B 101,390 106,555
Work in progress TR 9,771 8,206
Finished goods X 109,094 144,318
220,255 259,079

HOSA International Limited ;& ¢ EBEHER AT
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(BRmBHERAIN GUARBIIR)

14 Inventories (continued) 14 FE
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) BREBRIVFTAEZNEES
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: HomamT :

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLFE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETFT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEERAE 536,094 572,532
Write down of inventories FEEE 823 881
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEEEER (704) -
536,213 573,413
: =k
15 Trade and other receivables 15 BZREMERK
At 31 December
M12A831H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFr
Trade and bills receivables 5B R % 354,594 248,486
Deposits and prepayments Ee RIERAR 40,430 45,524
Other receivables E b FEUK 26,523 50,024
421,547 344,034
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered FT 7 B 5 FE WUk B L A B MR T8 B A
within one year. —FRYE o
The Group accepts bank and commercial acceptance bills for REEZWARITREE AR RIBEXA
settlement of trade receivables. As at 31 December 2016, outstanding B EWR - 2016512 A31 B HIE
commercial acceptance bills in the amount of RMB401,490,000 (2015: e A, =R A R #5401,490,000 7T
RMB267,920,000) have been discounted to the banks. As these bills (20154 : AR¥267,920,0007T)4EE
have been discounted without recourse, the Group has derecognised FRMREETRITHRIPEARLE
these outstanding bills as receivables as at 31 December 2016 and & o BREEAR EREERNFEE
2015. RAEF - Rt - AEER20165F12 8

318 & R20155%12 A31 BRI TERZ
AR BB B ERIERIEUGR -
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued)
(i) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade and bills receivables (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of allowance for
doubtful debts, is as follows:

(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

15 BZRHEMEBRRGE
) IRESH
K&K - RBHZA B
B REEBEE R 5 A8 Mk B A i
ZE(BENE B REMBKK
) HOBREE AT -

At 31 December

M12831H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ANEREFT
Within 1 month MEAARA 91,746 56,657
More than 1 month but within 3 months  11E A A F{E3EA R 168,628 114,849
More than 3 months but within 6 months  3{& 3 LA_F{B61E A & 78,779 75,139
More than 6 months but within 1 year 6fE A A EB1FA 13,037 1,622
More than 1 year 1A E 2,404 219
354,594 248,486

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note
24(a).

As at 31 December 2016, current balance included in trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) amounted to
RMB339,153,000 (2015: RMB246,645,000). Amount past due
was RMB15,441,000 (2015: RMB1,841,000). Receivables that
were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

AEBEERRNEMFEEIR
Mf3E24(@a) -

MR2016F12A31H » BFEEHZ
SR (Fk REERE) AR
Hi 45 5 & A R 339,153,000 7T
(20154 : A R ¥ 246,645,000
L) cmBemmAEARK
15,441,000 7C (20154F : AR
1,841,0007T ) o I % 80 B N EE
1B 7 JE Y FUIR B2 37 3T HRE )40
HHMEZRFPERM -

Ea B ERE BYRES H
EASEABRFEEZBYR
FAE REBEELR BEE
BE ARNEEERYESEAE
8 BREHRBEDEE/ATEH
Yem - F ik SRR % S AR
RIERE o
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued) 15 ESREMERKE)

(i) Impairment of trade and bills receivables (i) EFEWREERZERE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded BAE 5B ERE AR
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied BEXEHAEEREYER  HER
that the recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the &[5 A0 U [0 O 1 = B T BB )
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly ERIGR - FEULBR T - BEEX
(see note 1(i)(i)). HENE WM (R M

1))
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not REE2016512 A31H EFEAR
record any impairment losses in respect of trade receivables SEWESSEE SR ER
(2015: Nil). HYREEKR (20155 « &) o
16 Pledged deposits 16 2EHEX
At 31 December
M12H31H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABEF T AREFT
Amount pledged as security for B RITEE R 2 A
bank loans (note 19) (His19) 207,800 132,000
Amount pledged as security for EStENRIRE R 258
bills payable (note 18) (Hfa£18) 48,159 42,916
255,959 174,916
The pledged deposits are expected to be released upon the settlement BEEARFEREBNEERBRITERR

of the relevant bank loans and bills payable within 12 months. FETEIRBTE 1218 B AR o



(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

17 Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits

held at banks

(@) Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits held at (@) BERESZEEYRNBTESE
banks comprise: HWEBFERBEATERARK :
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT
Fixed deposits held at banks with FRERBE=FAN
maturity over three months HRITE TR 1,364,266 1,281,500
Cash and cash equivalents in the REHBESRERZ
consolidated cash flow statement BERREEEY 88,796 21,000
1,453,062 1,302,500
Cash and cash equivalent represents cash at bank and on hand ReRREFEMRENBED
as at the end of the reporting period. RRITERRFEES -
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated (b) BRBATFHELEFRBSRSNY

17

(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

RERRESEYRRITES

(N

from operations:

BR :

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETIT
Profit before taxation BRBE AT RIS 327,176 338,892
Adjustments for: BLNFSIBEL A -
— Depreciation —TE 9,028 9,617
- Amortisation of intangible assets —EmEEERENES
and lease repayments b3 820 790
— Finance costs — W TR AR 4,307 1,002
— Interest income-financial institutions —FEWA — & B TE (40,900) (36,633)
— Equity-settled share-based payments — — PAREZS 45 & LAY S+ (800) -
— Foreign exchange loss — [ H 18 2,338 133
301,969 313,801
Changes in working capital EELESEHH
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,/ () 38,824 (89,983)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 & E{th fE g Z1 & N (82,002) (26,524)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other & 5 K& HAbFE( =X
payables CRA), 74 m (142,257) 109,184
Cash generated from operations KEFTSIR 4 116,534 306,478
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18 Trade and other payables 18 EFRHEMEST
At 31 December

M12A31H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Trade payables B SR 20,052 97,427
Bills payable FEEE 124,098 118,862
Receipts in advance TEU R 1,455 18,463

Amounts due to the immediate FEREEZERT

controlling party 53,671 -
Dividends payable FERHAR B 12 1,591
Other payables and accruals HivE R R ETE R 36,740 84,543
236,028 320,886

Bills payable as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were secured by
pledged bank deposits as disclosed in note 16.

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
creditors and bills payable (which are included in trade and other
payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows:

MR20165F & 2015F12 A31 B ERZ
BEAB E IR IR T BRI Ty B A B
AR

BB S MEMENRIBIR —F R
MR RBRARIRELEE -

RIERR - REBZERAHNE FEN
EREENREGIAE S REEN
FORFRE DT T

At 31 December

M12A31H

2016 2015

RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTFTT AR¥TFT

Within 1 month 1E AR 51,296 57,151
More than 1 month but within 1{E A LA EB3E A A

3 months 15,750 86,201
More than 3 months but within 3fE A LA E1B6E AR

6 months 70,697 63,566

More than 6 months 6fE A LA E 6,407 9,371

144,150 216,289
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Bank loans

As at 31 December 2016, the bank loans were repayable with 12
months. The bank loans were secured or guaranteed as follows:

19

(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

RITEX

MR20165F12 8310 - IRITEZEN121E
A REE - BITEFRMERIRIENR
N

At 31 December

M12A31H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFIT AREFT
Secured by pledged bank deposits A BRI TIF R
(note 16) (K#16) 206,632 129,739
Guaranteed by a key management BAEEEEABRE
personnel (note 26(b)) (B1£26(b)) 14,000 _
Unsecured RAER 100,000 =
320,632 129,739

The bank loans were mainly used for purchase of raw materials and
financing the dividends paid to shareholders.

Equity settled share-based transactions

The Company has two share option schemes namely, a Pre-IPO
Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”), which were
adopted on 23 November 2011.

On 23 November 2011, the Company granted options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 20,500,000 shares of the Company to its directors,
senior management, employees and others under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, being 80% of the initial public offering price.

The Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for a period of 10 years
ending on 23 November 202 1. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme,
the directors of the Company may invite, at their discretion, eligible
participants, including employees and directors of any company in the
Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company to
a maximum of 40,000,000 shares.

On 1 April 2016, the Company granted options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 1,500,000 shares of the Company to its executive
director and chief financial officer under the Share Option Scheme.

20

RITEREEREBE RV R
RIRE »

URREEUARD/EENT
Z

ARATIR2011FE11 A23 B AR IERE
REHERT 2 - BNE R AMEEREEER
T E([ERAFREEATEREE )
KRR RT B ([ BB AR MR T 21 ) -

M2011411 8238 ° A QAFREE
RAFRBEENBEREAZEREES -
BREEBEAER  RBEEREMALIRSE
AIREAAHBEEEN%REA &
20,500,000/% AN A R B (0 H BE A AE -

BB 2B A 106 - HE2021
F11 7238 AL - BIEERESE - &K
NABEBAMNBERRSERREE (R
FAEBETIAARNEERES)
B My n] &% % 2 88540,000,000 A% 28 2 &A%
BB NRAE -

MR2016F481H » KA RIREEKET
EEERTEEREFEYHERE AR
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BIAARKESIR)
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions (continued)

The exercise price of options under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the board of directors at its absolute discretion but in
any event will not be less than the higher of:

@

(ii)

(iii)
(a)

the closing price of the shares (the “Shares”) as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date, which
must be a business day, of the date of grant;

the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

the nominal value of the Shares.

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

20 UREEEURDAEENR

2 (&

BT S TR EITEEEHES

SREMNEET - HERINATHER

THREEE

i)y RHEHEREZEB(AALXA)H
R RARERTHIKRD ([
B HE

iy BEREZANAELSEAKS
Fr & BREXRFTHIRAD 4™
(=R

(iiy  PEHEIE -

(a) RBRHEMNKIRGKEGDT :

() BEXRAHREFIBRETE

Options granted on 23 November 2011 RO0114E11 H23 51514 69
FERIE
Number of Vesting Contractual life
options granted condition of options
ERBREHE FEGRYE BRESIEH
Options granted to BYEEMERE 6,460,000 Note (*) Note (*)
directors BaE(*) BaE(*)
Options granted to RYFafEIREr 3,400,000 Note (*) Note (*)
senior management BEPSAE B B(*)
Options granted to BEYHMEERN 8,640,000 Note (*) Note (*)
other employees BB AR AE BtaE*) HiaE*)
Options granted to FTEMATH 2,000,000 Note (*) Note (*)
others BB HizE*) HizE*)
20,500,000
Note (*):  These options are exercisable during the period at(*) - ZEBRER N B ERE20114F12

commencing from the day immediately following the
expiry of the one year period after 16 December 2011 (the
“Listing Date”), and ending on the day falling five years
after 23 November 2011 (the “Granted Date”), during
which, (a) up to 30% options granted may be exercised
on or prior to the end of the second year after the Listing
Date; (b) subject to (a), up to 60% options granted may be
exercised on or prior to the end of the third year after the
Listing Date; and (c) subject to (a) and (b), all outstanding
options may be exercised prior to the expiry of the said
exercise period, failing which the options will lapse and no
longer be exercisable.
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions (continued)

(a)

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:
(continued)

(ii)

Share Option Scheme

(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

20 UESEEURDBEENT
& (&

(a) BHBNBERREEWT : (&)

(i) FERETE

Options granted on 1 April 2016 R20169F441 AL
Number of Vesting Contractual life
options granted condition of options
ERBEREHE BEGG BRESOTEH
Options granted to RHEHRES 1,500,000 Note (#) Note (#)
a director BiaE#) Mzt @)
Note (#): These options are exercisable during the period W) - ELRBEITNER

commencing from the day immediately following the
expiry of the two-year period after 1 April 2016 (the
“Granted Date”), and ending on the day falling five years
after the Granted Date, during which, (a) up to 30%
options granted may be exercised on or prior to the end
of the third year after the Granted Date; (b) subject to (a),
up to 60% options granted may be exercised on or prior
to the end of the fourth year after the Granted Date; and
(c) subject to (a) and (b), all outstanding options may be
exercised prior to the expiry of the said exercise period,
failing which the options will lapse and no longer be
exercisable.

2016 F4 A1 ([#
el =R NDEE ke b
ZBEE  ERELAB
AT Rz HRTT
- EdP@&E%30%
R BB AR M AT A R
HEARE = FFER
Z AT E 5 (b) BR (a)
BRAEREN  &Z
60% 1% {1 B A% 4 AT 7
R BBHEENFES
Kk Z AT« QK
@RbKESERE
SN FTE B ARITERD
B AR AT R 1T 1
BEmATITEE - BA
ZEBREGRBR
TEAITT{E
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions (continued)

(b)

(9]

HIAARESIR)

20 UESEEURDBEENT

2 (&
The number and weighted average exercise price of share (b) BRENHKE RMEFHTEE
options are as follows: mr
(i)  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme () BEXRAFREBRETS
2016 2015
Exercise price No. of options  Exercise price  No. of options
T8 BREHA 17{EE R
Outstanding at the beginning A& AT TE
of the year HK$1.28 11,415,000 HK$1.28 15,468,000
Exercised during the year FAEATE HK$1.28 (8,395,000) HK$1.28 (4,053,000)
Expired during the year FAEER HK$1.28 (3,020,000) = =
Outstanding at the end RERARITE
of the year - - HK$1.28 11,415,000
Exercisable at the end RERA] FITE
of the year - - HK$1.28 11,415,000
There were no outstanding options under the Pre-IPO E@Z_()16¢12)5]31 H &
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2016. RITENBE R ARSI
FHE o
(i)  Share Option Scheme (i) BRETE

The options outstanding at 31 December 2016 was
1,500,000, and had an exercise price of HK$2.37 and
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.25

years.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial lattice model.
The contractual life of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into

the binomial lattice model.

MR20165F12 318 © ik
1T MY BB AR & 1,500,000
B% - 1768 A2.3787T 0 N
RIS E N FHBL4.255F -

(0 BRENDABERRR

AR H P IR H B B ke T B BR 7%
MAREE H2EEROER
B RREFE - IR BRE
AR EEMGER —BAER
AFtE - BRENSOFHIIN
AR - RPITENEHES
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions (continued) 20

(9]

Fair value of share options and assumptions (continued)

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Fair value at measurement date
REtEENAREE

Share price
R B 4%

Exercise price

1IfE(E

Expected volatility
TRERK I8

Expected option life
RBR e TRETF HR

Expected dividends
TEEARR B

Risk-free interest rate
R B i =

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could

materially affect the fair value estimate.

(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

URREEUROG/EENT
5 (%)

(0 BRENDAEBERRBRGE)
() BEXRAFHREFBRESE

HK$12,439,818
12,439,818 7T

HK$1.60
1.608 7T

HK$1.28
1.2887T

51.40%

5 years

54

5.06%

0.67%

TEHA R 18 A 2R bR (1R 4%
FE R 0 A O R R A
AHE)REE - WREAT
NFAEFHERE BRI
& B (E AT TR ER (L T LA
o HHRENELKRE S
X - FIRAEBERARR
M EN AT H DA BEMGFE
EEAVE -
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions (continued)

() Fair value of share options and assumptions (continued)
(i)  Share Option Scheme

Fair value at measurement date

REEANRAEE

Share price

BeAn B8

Exercise price

1IE(E

Expected volatility
TEERK IR

Expected option life
MBI TRETF 5

Expected dividends
TEEARR &

Risk-free interest rate
3 B =

The volatility is estimated by the weekly historical volatility
of the Company as at the Granted Date. Expected
dividends is estimated by the trailing 12-month dividend
payouts of the Company divided by its closing share
price as at the dividend declaration date. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the

fair value estimate.
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(0 BRENDAEBERRBRGE)
(i) JERAETE

HK$760,744
760,74478 7T

HK$2.22
2.22%7T

HK$2.37
23787

34.37%

5 years

54

2.42%

0.91%
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financial position

(a)

(b)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of

(BR=BHEAIN

21

BIAANREFIR)

B ORI R RGBT

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (@) EORBARR RS HRAHBIRE -
financial position represents:
At 31 December
M12H31H
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFIT
Prepaid PRC corporate income tax AP BREMEH = (8,232)
PRC corporate income tax B EEFTIS L 3,046 -
PRC dividend withholding tax AR B TR 30,300 19,000
33,346 10,768
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) ERIAECEHEEERERE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RE AR R P R AR
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the BIEEE(BE)ENBH RF
movements during the year are as follows: NI
Provision of
impairment of  Provision for Undistributed
depositsand  impairment profitof PRC  Unrealised
prepayments  of inventories Accruals  subsidiaries profits Total
RERBAK HENELRE . .
HERE FEAERE EER  AORAE  ARERER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT  ARETr  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT ARETT
Deferred tax assetsand ~ EEHEEEREEEL
liabilities arising from:
At 1 January 2015 M2015% 1410 = - 3422 (7,197) - (3,775)
Credited/(charged) to RSN/l
profit or loss - 132 (1,711) (22,585) 2123 (22,041)
Release upon distribution of IR S {ARRK
dividends - - - 19,000 - 19,000
At31December 2015and 120156128318 &
1 January 2016 201651718 = 132 1,71 (10,782) 2123 (6,816)
Credited/(charged) to RBEXMEA/ (IR
profit or loss 114 18 (1,711) (11,300) 634 (12,245)
Release upon distribution of 2 RAR B4
dividends - - - 11,300 - 11,300
At 31 December 2016 #2016812A318 114 150 = (10,782) 2,757 (7,761)




(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmBHERAIN GUARBIIR)

21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 21
financial position (continued)

(b)

(9]

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statements of financial
position:

BHMBRRRPHOFTER

(&
(b) CRBEEHEAEREEE)
B PIITBRRREE :

At 31 December

M12831H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETFT
Net deferred tax asset recognised in the  FA& GBI T& AN R FEREY
consolidated statement of financial B IEEEFE
position 3,021 3,966
Net deferred tax liability recognised in A& HFEI TSR R R FERR AY
the consolidated statement of financial JEIERIE & & %A
position (10,782) (10,782)
(7,761) (6,816)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

As at 31 December 2016, temporary differences relating to
the undistributed profits of certain subsidiaries of the Group in
the mainland China amounted to RMB1,647,705,000 (2015:
RMB1,475,878,000). Deferred tax liabilities of RMB153,988,000
(2015: RMB136,806,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the withholding tax that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits, as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries in the mainland China and the
Directors have determined that these profits are not likely to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

(0 HARRBWEEHEKE

R2016F 12 A31H @ EEAREEH
P B ABERNE THB AR ER
DIRFEE BT R EREEA
R #1,647,705,0007T (2015 £ :
AR #1,475,878,0007T ) ° iRk
T8 & & A R # 153,988,000 7T
(20154 : A R # 136,806,000
TO) WA DR Z SR E FEes
FERRTEINHRETER  BREL
R m) 2 ) o B K R B B R B A
KEHE  MEBEETZEF
ER B ARR T KA REREITH
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(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

Capital, reserves and dividends 22 BXR - @#ERKRE
(a) Movements in the components of equity (a) HEZEARIPIHWEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBNAHERSESSD 2 H
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out Y R EAR s SRS R A GHiE
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of mEEBR -  ARARFVEFRK
the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity B o M Bl 28 D B B B R 1B 5
between the beginning and the end of the year are set below: N
The Company ¥ /N
(Accumulated
Capial Share-based losses)/
Share Share  redemption Exchange  compensation Retained
capial premium TESEIVes Teserve reserve eamings Total
WRIFREE

i BhEE ErEEGER ELfE  HRERE ZiER r

(note 22(c)  (note 22(a)(i)  (note 22()(i)  (note 22(a)(iv)  (note 22(d)vi))

(W200) (2 (Fzen) (W22 (B2
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wi AREFT  ABEFr  ARETr  AREFT AREFT ARETT AREER

Balance at 1 January 2015 7201551810
&4 13,465 132,808 26 (6,330) 7495 (35,795) 111,669

Changes in equity WSEERERE

for 2015:
Total comprehensive income Al 25

for the year - - - (2433) - 163,939 161,506
Shares issued on exercise of 7B REZ

share option BETRIA 20 )] 6,081 - - (1,986) - 4127
Dividends approved in SAEERENRS

respect of current year 22(b) - (116,364) - - - (82,091) (198,455)
Purchase of own shares BB ARSR(A

~ Par value paid -ENEE B) - - - - - B)

~ Premium paid -EEE - (895) - - - - (895)

- Transfer between reserves  — SRR/ & - B) 3 = = = =
Balance at 20158128318

31 December 2015 e 13,494 21,627 29 (8,763) 5,509 46,053 77,949

HOSA International Limited &4 BB AR A F 147
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(BRmBHERAIN GUARBIIR)

22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(a)

22 BEXR - #HERRE(E

Movements in the components of equity (continued) (a) MREZARBAHEE(E)
(Accumulated
Capital Share-based losses)/
Share Share  redemption Exchange  compensation Retained
capital premium reserves reserve reserve earnings Total
URARER (ZHEE)/
s RitEE ERRERE EXRE  NHERRE RENE &3t
(note 22(c)) (note 22(d)(i)) (note 22(d)(i)) (note 22(d)(iv)) (note 22(a)(vi))
(ft2(0) (wz220d)  (Baza)y) (Wezae)iy) (KE220)m)
Notes RVB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000
Wit ABEFR  ARETR  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETL  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2016 1201651 1R 4
£ 13,494 2,627 29 (8,763) 5,509 46,053 77,949
Changes in equity WIEEERERE !
for 2016:
Total comprehensive income - FREANGER
for the year - - - (14,319) - 73,204 58,885
Equity-settled sharebased  WEREELRETH
payments 22(d)vi) - - - - (800) - (800)
Shares issued on evercise  7(EERIEZ
of share option BE TR 22()i) 15 13,764 - - (4,530) - 9307
Dividends approved in SAEERERRS
respect of current year 22() - (21,627) - - - (95,973) (117,600)
Balance at 20165128318
31 December 2016 ifei 13,567 13,764 29 (23,082) 179 23,284 21,1




(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 22 BEXR - #HERRE(E)
(b) Dividends (b) KBS
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) AEEENELGEBDKRE
Company attributable to the year: BIRE :

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFIT AREFT
Interim dividend declared of EEIRER4. 28K
HK 4.2 cents per share FRERAR B.(2015%F :

(2015: HK6.0 cents per share) Fh6.07811) 59,593 82,091

Final dividend proposed after RS AR B B 1%

the end of the reporting period 2.3/ 1lIH) R EAAR B

of HK 2.3 cents per share (2015: (20154 : &2 .2%4l)

HK2.2 cents per share) 34,493 30,576
Special dividend proposed after RS EARZEIRE

the end of the reporting period 45 3IIA% & (20154 :

of nil (2015: HK2.0 cents per FFR%2.078140)

share) - 27,796
94,086 140,463
The dividends proposed after the end of the reporting R BRRIZ BR A A% BT £
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of RmERRERBBE -
the reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FETEK L oz iR L
Company attributable to the previous financial year, FEHBFERE (RZFE
approved and paid during the year: EHEREZ()

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Final dividend in respect of BEBAVRFEERN
the previous financial year, REARE B (RZEE

approved and paid during the BHOEREA)
year, of HK 2.2 cents per share  &f%2.2/8l(2015%F :

(2015:HK 6.9 cents per share) FH%6.97811) 30,385 90,215
Special dividend in respect of BRABTHRFEERRER
the previous financial year, % B (RezF R E

approved and paid during the RER) - F%2.07810
year, of HK 2.0 cents per share  (20154F : &f%2.0%511)
(2015: HK2.0 cents per share) 27,622 26,149

58,007 116,364




(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmBHERAIN GUARBIIR)

22 BEXR - #HERRE(E

22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(c) Share capital (0 mB’=E
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEREZTTRE
Number of Nominal value of
shares ordinary shares
RHOEE ZEREE
Note ‘000 HK$'000 RMB’000
bzt FR FET ARETT

Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of ERMEE0.01E T

HK $0.01 each B 10,000,000 100,000 87,450
Original shares, issued and ERTRARZER

fully paid: Bz
At 1 January 2015 R201541 818 1,655,212 16,552 13,465
Shares issued under share BREFE T 2E%

option scheme 1T (ii) 4,053 41 32
Purchase of own shares BB EARH D (384) (4) (3)
At 31 December 2015 201512 H31H

and 1 January 2016 201651 H1H 1,658,881 16,589 13,494
Shares issued under share BRETE T 2B

option scheme TR (ii) 8,395 84 73
At 31 December 2016 2016412 A31H 1,667,276 16,673 13,567

TR A A BB
EIRARE - WAIEAR AR
RE LER/E—BRBROK—
F - HRARBWNFEHE
E  FAEBRAZEARE
EE

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

BX
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22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

() Share capital (continued)

(ii)

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe
for 8,395,000 (2015: 4,053,000) ordinary shares in
the Company at a consideration of RMB9,307,000
(2015: RMB4,127,000), of which RMB73,000 (2015:
RMB32,000) was credited to share capital and the
balance of RMB9,234,000 (2015: RMB4,095,000) was
credited to the share premium account. RMB4,530,000
(2015: RMB1,986,000) was transferred from the share-
based compensation reserve to the share premium
account.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company may be applied
for payment of distributions or dividends to shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Capital redemption reserve represented the nominal
amount of the shares repurchased.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve in the consolidated statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2016 and 2015
represented exchange differences and the excess of value
of assets injected to Haosha Industry by the investors over
nominal value of share capital, which was accounted for
in equity under capital reserve.

(BR=BHEAIN

BIAANREFIR)

22 BEXR - #HERRE(E
(0 BR&E)

(i)

TRBREZ ERITRG

FRTEBRENRE
A R #9,307,0007T (2015
£ NR#¥4,127,0007T)
2 B AN A 7] 8,395,000 A%
(20154 : 4,053,000/% ) &
BRx - Heh AR 73,000
J0(20154F : AR¥32,000
TL)RTARA - HREAR
#9,234,000 7T (2015 4F -
A R ¥ 4,095,000 7T ) &F
AR EER ARK
4,530,000 (20154 = A
R #1,986,0007T) 2 B LARK
1 BEN 2 MIERFEE AR

(B o

(d) REHEREH

(i)

(i)

RGBEEREXEEHE

REFEREREE AR
&) A A0 i (B P P IR A5 0
RSB TR - R
RN DIREREBHZ
% ARREN A EELS
EREESIEET -

BRI FHEER RO A
HE -

BX @

20164 52015412 A 31
B2 AR RANE
NEEIRINEEZRRIGESE
ANENVEECEEBES
RIEABENRD - ZES
ARSI BERSETRE A F
& -
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BIAARKESIR)

22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Statutory reserve

According to the Articles of Association of Haosha
Industry and Haosha Industry (Datian), the entities are
required to transfer part of its net profits (after offsetting
prior year losses), as approved by the board of directors,
to statutory general reserve. Haosha Industry and Haosha
Industry (Datian) are required to appropriate general
reserve at 10% of its profit after taxation, as determined
under the PRC accounting rules and regulations, until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
As at 31 December 2016, appropriations were made by
Haosha Industry (Datian) to the general reserve at 10% of
its profit after taxation. However, such reserve made by
Haosha Industry reached the aforementioned percentage,
thus no further appropriation is required.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations outside the mainland
China which are dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in note 1(s).

Other reserve

The other reserve comprises the following:

- the difference of RMB91,124,000 represents 75%

of the historical carrying value of paid-in capital
of Haosha Industry amounting RMB91,125,000
acquired over the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company amounting HK$1,000 (RMB
equivalent of approximately RMB833); and

- the difference of HK$9,999 (RMB equivalent

of approximately RMB8,000) between the
historical carrying value of entire paid-in capital
of Hosa Group amounting to HK$10,000 and
the consideration of HK$1 acquired by Hosa
Investment.
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22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d)

(e)

()

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(vi) Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve represents the fair
value of share options granted to certain directors, senior
managements, employees and others of the Group.

Distributability of reserve

The aggregate amounts of distributable reserves (including
share premium and retained earnings) of the Company
as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were HK$41,417,000
(RMB equivalent of approximately RMB37,048,000)
and HK$80,783,000 (RMB equivalent of approximately
RMB67,680,000) respectively.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br=EHEBAIN

23

24

BIAARKESIR)

Employee retirement benefits
Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes"”) organised by the PRC
municipal government authorities whereby the Group is required
to make contributions to the Schemes at the rates of 18% to 20%
of the eligible employees’ salaries. The local government authorities
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the Group and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to the
plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits associated with the Schemes beyond the annual
contributions described above.

Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described
below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.
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24 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are generally due within 90 — 180 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 7% (2015: 6%)
and 37% (2015: 28%) of the total trade and other receivables
were due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 15.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the chairman of
the Group when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the Group are
carried at amount not materially different from their contractual
undiscounted cash flow as all the financial liabilities are with
maturities within one year or repayable on demand at the end
of the reporting period.
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(BRmBHERAIN GUARBIIR)

24 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(b)

(9]

Liquidity risk (continued)

The contractual undiscounted cash flow and carrying amount of
the short-term bank loans as at 31 December 2016 are set out as

24 BBEBREERQAEEGE

(b) RBESEM(E)

M20165F12A318 » BERTE
HHEIHARIBR R EMEKE

follows: BEHFHIT
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Contractual undiscounted cash flow TR SRS 325,962 130,875
Carrying amount ARE{E 320,632 129,739

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loans.
The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by management is
set out in (i) below.

(0 FEER

AEBMNE @R EZRE RTT
B - HEREEEENAKEF
FHRBFHNTX() °

(i)  Interest rate profile () FFE4EE
2016 2015
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
1 ilES x ] YRS 8
RMB'000 RMB’000
AB¥ T ANREFT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEMERER
Bank loans BITER 5.05%-5.22% 114,000 = =
Variable rate borrowings: FENFELE
Bank loans FATER 1.01%-1.19% 206,632 1.58% 129,739
320,632 129,739
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BRESH

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 1% in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group's profit after tax for the year and
retained profits by approximately RMB1,182,000 (2015:
RMB1,083,000). Other components of equity would not
be affected by the changes in interest rates.
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24 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d)

Currency risk

As the Group's principal activities are carried out in the PRC,
the Group's transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi,
which is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange
rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the
rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China that
are determined largely by supply and demand.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, cash at bank that were
placed with banks in the PRC amounted to RMB1,471,713,000
and RMB1,702,761,000, respectively. Remittance of funds out
of the PRC is subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by
the PRC government.

As at 31 December 2016, The Group had no significant foreign
exchange exposure, as the bank loans dominated in HK$ were
held by the entity for which HK$ is the functional currency.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group was exposed to currency
risk primarily arising from bank loan of RMB129,739,000
denominated in United States dollars held by the entity for
which RMB is the functional currency.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
appreciation/depreciation of 1% in RMB, with all other variables
held constant, would have decreased/increased the Group’s
net profit for the year and retained profits by approximately
RMB331,000 (2015: increased/decreased by RMB1,083,000).

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rate had been applied to re-measure the bank loan
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial statement of
foreign operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
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(BRmBIEHRIN

HIAARESIR)

24 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(e)

Fair values

All financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2015 and 2016.

25 Commitments

(a)

(b)

24 MEEREERAABEGE

(e)
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Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016 (@) M20165F12A31BLRN IR
not provided for in the financial statements were as RELHBENRESEREEND
follows: T
At 31 December
R®12A31H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFr
Contracted for BET4 2,400 =
Authorised but not contracted for BEBEERTA 12,200 45,000
14,600 45,000
At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease (b) 7A2016F12H318  RET A
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are HEEHERANARRERS
payable as follows: RBEEWMT ¢
At 31 December
R12831H
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARBFT
Within 1 year 1N 5,624 7,428
After 1 year but within 5 years 112 1B5F A 11,500 1,082
17,124 8,510

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, the
Group is the lessee in respect of items of offices in Hong Kong
and mainland China held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to five years, with an
option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

26 Material related party transactions 26 EXBEHBAIRS
In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the [ 7E BA 75 3R 3R EL A 200 BT I B2 RO RE B 75
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material BREYN  NEBBR TS N EKBEEH
related party transactions. X5 e
During the year, the directors are of the view that the followings are FA - BERBUT AL B R
related parties of the Group: 7
Name of party Relationship
BHEW B#
Fujian Province Jinjiang City Haosha Garments Co., Ltd* 75% and 25% owned by Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi
(“Haosha Garments") Hongyan respectively, who are the directors of the
Company
BREEIMEPHRERAA(DESRK]) AR RIES LR E REBRRELEDRIEE75% K
25%
Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited 49.85% and 26.23% owned by Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi
(“Ho Born Investment”) Hongyan respectively
SER AR AR AR HAARR R ESMLR A RRELED RIHEF49.85% K&
26.23%
3 The English translation of the entity’s name is for reference only. The official * AREBHOREZEELE - Z QA
name of the entity is in Chinese. MEABERFX -
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (@) FEEBAEHHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEEFZERBAEBNHM(EIE
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as disclosed M7 # R B T AR A ESH
in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed FIEA RS ENEN T&E
in note 8, is as follows: FHEFHEEFIE) AT
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR#FT ARBTIT
Short-term employee benefits 5 EE SR T 4,502 4,349
Equity settled share-based payments AR AEE LA
Betn 2 179 -
Contributions to defined contribution FEHFRIRETE
retirement plans T 27 65
4,708 4,414
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note 5(b)). @EHE s A8 TR R (s
5(b)) °
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(BRmBHERAIN GUARBIIR)

26 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b)

Transactions with the related parties

26 EXBBAIRS (EZ

(b)

HEBLINRS

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HizE AR¥FT ARETFT
Purchases of products BEEMD
— Haosha Garments —ED B 3,461 3,040
Receiving processing services BERZFEM AR
— Haosha Garments —ED BRI 51,224 49,180
Loan from the immediate REEBEEZERFHER ()
controlling party
— Ho Born Investment —EHPBIRE 52,396 =
Loans from the controlling REZERRRNER (i)
shareholder
— Shi Hongliu — et = 92,325
Notes: et -
(i) The loan from the immediate controlling party is unsecured, interest (i) REEEERFNE R &K

free and repayable within one year. The loan is included in “Trade and
other payables” (note 18).

(ii) The loans from the controlling shareholder are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed repayment terms.

(iii) As at 31 December 2016, a key management personnel of the Group
provided guarantee for the Group’s bank loan with an outstanding
balance of RMB 14,000,000 (Note 19).

(ii)

(iif)
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26 Material related party transactions (continued)

(9]

Balances with the related parties

As the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
balances with related parties:

(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

26 EXBBAIRS ()
(0 HEBHSHES

RBERR - AEERBEBSE
TFIEER -

Year ended 31 December

BZ1R2AMBLEE
2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AEETT
Trade payables B ZEMR
— Haosha Garments —EDBIK - (1,044)
Prepayments SEANEN
— Haosha Garments —EABIK 767 -
Bills payable F’EHKTF
— Haosha Garments YD BRI (2,000) =
Amounts due to the immediate R EEER T
controlling party
— Ho Born Investment —EHRE (53,671) =
Dividend payable FERTAR S
— Ho Born Investment —EFBILE - (1,587)
(54,904) (2,631)

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest free
and are expected to be paid within one year.

ENBEDRRRERR 28
MERE—FAXN -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BrSEEBEN - HUARESIR)
27 Company-level statement of financial position 27 ARIEEBMEAARRR
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat AR¥FT AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries AT B AT AR E 13 = -
Total non-current assets ERBEELE = -
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables b R 292,264 177,730
Cash and cash equivalents BERREEEY 5,837 6,071
Total current assets REEEAE 298,101 183,801
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables E A FER R 63,728 105,852
Bank loans IRITE K 206,632 =
Total current liabilities BB EREEE 270,360 105,852
Net current assets RBEEFEE 27,741 77,949
Total assets less current HMEERRBESE EEFE
liabilities/Net assets 27,741 77,949
Capital and reserves EAXR#EE
Share capital A& A 22(0) 13,567 13,494
Reserves HEE 22(d 14,174 64,455
Total equity EmBE 27,741 77,949
28 Immediate and ultimate controlling party 28 EHERERESR

At 31 December 2016, the Directors consider the immediate
controlling party of the Group to be Ho Born Investment Holdings
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity
does not produce financial statements available for public use. The
Directors consider the ultimate controlling party of the Group to be

Mr Shi Hongliu.

MR2016F12 A31H » EERANEE
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29 Possible impact of amendments, new standards 29

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2016

Up to the date of issue of this report, the IASB has issued a few of
amendments and new standards which are not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

(BRmAEAIN  HAAREIIR)

BZE2016F12831BLEFEE
C MM {ERERIERT - Fe]
ZRIRABRENRETE

HEANRETEAY  BEESELE
SeC EMAEIEEZ=2016F12A31H
IEFE RMARERENEET RFETER] - M
I SRR A ER N FE ] R
R o ZEBEI MFRTEABIETY
AJREEAZN £ (B 4ERE o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BEs 2%
BRHE R EXR

Amendments to IAS 7, Disclosure initiative
BB ERIE TSR (BRI A) « ®EEF 2

Amendments to IAS 12, Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses
BB G ETERIE 125 (BRI AR) - BB AEHEIE 2 BELHEEE

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BRI ELERNFE 155 - K ELE AR N

IFRS 9, Financial instruments
BIPR B R AR S5 058 - £ T A

Amendments to IFRS 2, Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions

BRI BSImEERE 23R (BRI AN) - ROBRENX 52 7B HEEE

IFRS 16, Leases
BIPR B R E 1658 - HE

1 January 2017
201751 A1H

1 January 2017
201751 A18

1 January 2018
201851 A1H

1 January 2018
20181 H1H

1 January 2018
201851 A1H

1 January 2019
20191 H1H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

AEBBRIEFAEZFET RPN HIIE
RBRNEE - BEl - HERRRAZ
FER] ~ AT ER LRI B AR L
HEHMBRRENEATE -
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Five Years Financial Summary

HFEIEEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(=B HEAIN

BIAANREFR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

& Ot AR R R
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AREFr ANREFT  AREFT ARETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment #7% « R K& & 85,299 79,939 83,308 59,126 46,200
Lease prepayments BAEE 17,319 17,734 18,149 18,564 11,620
Intangible assets BYEE 513 769 522 499 190
Deferred tax assets BT IAE E 3,021 3,966 3,422 3,514 6,869
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 106,152 102,408 105,901 81,703 64,879
Current assets FEBEE
Inventories TE 220,255 259,079 169,096 151,409 102,193
Trade and bills receivables & 5 B N E M =& 354,594 248,486 269,222 247,274 252,398
Deposits and prepayments &% RIER 40,430 45,524 22,938 17,693 13,866
Other receivables H bR 26,523 50,024 28,812 3,991 5,938
Pledged deposits BEEHFR 255,959 174,916 15,832 17,684 98,278
Cash at bank and in hand* RITEHRFHERE* 1,453,062 1,302,500 1,259,737 1,059,149 730,513
Total current assets REEELE 2,350,823 2,080,529 1,765,637 1,497,200 1,203,186
Total assets BEM4E 2,456,975 2,182,937 1,871,538 1,578,903 1,268,065
Current liabilities pIh=Ri
Bank loans RITER 320,632 129,739 - - 86,890
Trade payables B ST 20,052 97,427 83,516 50,987 28,231
Bills payable ANES 124,098 118,862 48,223 60,945 46,447
Receipts in advance TEUGK 1,455 18,463 9,985 5,634 1,042
Other payables and accruals -t 5 & fE=T & F 90,423 86,134 66,310 56,571 41,305
Derivative financial liabilites ~ $TE 2B E & - = = = 933
Current taxation BIEA%EIE 33,346 10,768 15,161 8,710 11,120
Total current liabilities MENBELE 590,006 461,393 223,195 182,847 215,968
Non-current liabilities E1 o=
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE 10,782 10,782 7,197 - -
Total liabilities BEEE 600,788 472,175 230,392 182,847 215,968
Shareholders’ equity BRRER 1,856,187 1,710,762 1,641,146 1,396,056 1,052,097
Total liabilities and equity BEREFEHE 2,456,975 2,182,937 1,871,638 1,678,903 1,268,065
@ Included fixed deposits held at banks with maturity over three months. BIETF R IR =8 A BRI TEHIFR ©
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Five Years Financial Summary

hEBBEEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EERI  HUAARETIR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BHRBERAMARSRER

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFT AREFr AR¥Fr AREFr AREFT
Continuing operations: BEKSEEL
Revenue e 1,103,540 1,178,001 1,216,546 1,021,520 848,063
Cost of sales HE AR (536,213) (573,413) (576,273) (431,209) (333,874)
Gross profit EFHAb 567,327 604,588 640,273 590,311 514,189
Other revenue WA
— Interest income — FBHA 40,900 36,633 43,560 11,735 6,057
- Government grants — BT AL 12,578 24,418 29,259 12,999 17,786
- Others —Hth 4,372 779 B3] 771 3,783
57,850 61,830 73,142 25,505 27,626
Other net (loss)/income E b (E518), A
b2t
- Exchange (loss)/gain —EX (E18), e 1,567 (519) (2,428) 5,457 695
- Others —HAth (374) 7) (247) (2,682) (1,010)
1,193 (526) (2,675) 2,775 (315)
Selling and distribution SHES AT SHR AR
expenses (185,689) (206,770) (133,494) (104,537) (91,499)
Administrative and other TR M E MR
operating expenses (109,198) (119,228) (88,281) (75,223) (70,414)
Profit from operations =N 331,483 339,894 483,965 438,831 379,587
Finance costs BARG AR 2N (4,307) (1,002) - (398) (568)
Profit before tax IR 327,176 338,892 488,965 438,433 379,019
Income tax expenses FriSfifsz (58,339) (71,617) (85,803) (68,074) (47,907)
Profit for the year EENE 268,837 267,275 403,162 370,359 331,112
Exchange differences on a5 R B A 3R
translation of financial SpEENEIE Oy p
statements of operations ~ WERMEN ZE
outside the mainland
China (14,319) (2,433) 1,996 (7,513) (175)
254,518 264,842 405,158 362,846 330,937
Earning per share BRATN
- basic and diluted (RMB) ~ —E AN #55
(AR#T) 0.16 0.16 0.24 0.23 0.21
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Five Years Financial Summary

A FIBERE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(=B HEAIN

BIAANREFR)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EOHEERER
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Operating activities RETED
Cash generated from KERERE
operations 116,534 306,478 440,921 428,706 305,840
Income tax paid ERATEH (34,816) (72,969) (72,063) (67,129) (49,785)
Net cash generated from & ZEHERETHE
operating activities 81,718 233,509 368,858 361,577 256,055
Investing activities RETE
Payment for purchase BEVE BER &
of property, plant and R
equipment (8,097) (6,210) (31,170) (17,475) (3,5672)
Payment for purchase of BEEVEENK (149) (622) (256) (421) (74)
Intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal HEME - BENEE
of property, plant and FfS 5008
equipment - = 14 - 68
Interest received EH&ZH}Z%UE\ 41,519 40,095 22,519 15,045 2,741
(Increase)/decrease in BEHAFROLEM), B
pledged deposits (81,043) (159,084) 1,852 80,594 (85,106)
Placement of time deposits ZARZ|EARBB=1EA
with original maturity ZTEHE
over three months (1,364,266) (1,281,500) (1,222,298) (723,950) (327,977)
Maturity of time deposits ~ REHBEBB=EFZE
with original maturity HIF R EIEARE
over three months 1,281,500 1,222,298 723,950 327,977 81,070
Net cash (used in)/ REFE(FTR),/
generated from FBR&FE
investing activities (130,536) (185,023) (505,389) (318,230) (332,850)
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AFBHE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHIEBEI  HAAREHIR)
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)
EOHBEERERE)
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFr AR¥TFr ANREFr AREFr
Financing activities MEEH
Proceeds from bank loans  $R{TEHFTEZ0E 310,489 129,606 - = 86,323
Repayment of bank loans (B R1TE (132,076) - - (88,644) -
Proceeds from loan from HEERERER
the immediate controlling  Fr{SRUE
shareholder 52,396 - = = —
Proceeds from shares RIREER AT 813877
issued under share B 1S 3RE
option scheme 9,307 4,127 709 3,329 -
Net proceeds from placing B EL &R PG TIRFHE
shares - - - 116,872 -
Payment for repurchase of 7B EI {20
shares - (898) (5,368) = =
Interest paid 2RFIE (4,323) (892) = (569) =
Dividends paid to equity ENARRERRERLN
shareholders of the BB
Company (119,179) (196,868) (156,570) (141,672) (161,539)
Net cash generated from @& EZEfHE
/(used in)financing (FrR)BEBE
activities 116,614 (64,925) (161,229) (110,684) (75,216)
Net increase/(decrease) HLRELZEY
in cash and cash #h0,/ R ) BEE
equivalents 67,796 (16,439) (297,760) (67,337) (152,011)
Cash and cash equivalents R1A1BHRERES
at 1 January ZEY 21,000 37,439 335,199 402,536 554,547
Cash and cash equivalents R12831BHEER
at 31 December RLZEY 88,796 21,000 37,439 335,199 402,536
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A FIBERE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BE=HEHERAN  HAARETIR)

MAJOR FINANCIAL RATIOS

EMELE =R
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
A. Profitability ratios: A BFIgENER
1. Growth/(decline) 1. 8K/ (TRK&)
a. Revenue a. BEME (6.3%) (3.2%) 19.1% 20.5% 22.0%
b. Net profit b. JFHHE 0.6% (33.7%) 8.9% 11.9% 21.0%
c. Total comprehensive c. LREWEBE
income (3.9%) (34.6%) 11.7% 9.6% 21.2%
2. Profit margins 2. M=
a. Gross profit margin a. EFIE 51.4% 51.3% 52.6% 57.8% 60.6%
b. Operating profit b. & & F =
margin 30.0% 28.9% 40.2% 43.0% 44.8%
c. Total comprehensive c. IREWEBE
income 23.1% 22.5% 33.3% 35.5% 39.0%
d. Net profit margin d. JFFIEE 24.4% 22.7% 33.1% 36.3% 39.0%
3. Return on equity/total s BEER
assets xR
a. Return on equity a. HEmEIRE 14.3% 15.8% 26.7% 29.6% 34.3%
b. Return on total b. 4A& E o3
assets 11.0% 13.1% 23.5% 25.5% 28.6%
. Liquidity ratios: B. REIESLE .
1. Liquidity ratios 1. MBESLE
a. Current ratios a. MBI E 3.98 451 7.91 8.19 5.57
b. Quick ratios b. &B)LL = 3.61 3.95 7.15 7.36 5.1
2. Turnover ratios 2. FEEL &
a. Stock turnover days a. FEAERY 163.1 136.3 101.5 107.3 110.6
b. Debtors’ turnover b. FEUERTNEE
days HEr 99.7 80.2 77.6 89.4 99.7
c. Creditors’ turnover c. BTERAAS
days HE 122.7 110.8 77.2 79.0 86.2
. Capital adequacy ratios: C. E&% B = :
1. Gearing ratio 1. BEBEER
a. Gearing ratio a. BELE
- bank loans —$RITER 13.0% 5.9% = = 6.9%
b. Gearing ratio b. BELE
— bank loans and —RITERR
bills payable ENEE 18.1% 11.4% 2.6% 3.9% 10.5%
2. Debt to net worth ratio . BIEFEL R
a. Debt to equity ratio a. BEEREX 24.0% 14.5% 2.9% 4.4% 12.7%
b. Interest coverage b. ﬂ%%fﬁl‘: 77.0 339.2 N/A 1,100.8 668.3
3. Effective tax rate ERHE 17.8% 21.1% 17.6% 15.5% 12.6%
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